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To enhance mental health and promote better marital and 
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The optimism of the blue sky and the delicate fingerprint pattern provide 
the appropriate background to the ascending Sun, underlying the theme 
of being Faithful, highlighted with a clear white line of focus emanating 
from the purity, purpose and direction of the snow-capped mountain.



CHAIRPERSON'S MESSAGE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

2017 is the 51st year of Counselling and Care Centre (CCC), marking its crossing into the second 
half-century. I am grateful for the faithfulness and the tireless efforts of the Management Committee 
and staff in strengthening the services of CCC and keeping relevant to the changing landscape of the 
community.

This past year the Centre persevered with its strategic planning sessions as we recognised 
the importance in providing a sense of direction, outlining measurable goals and in evaluating its 
progress and changing approaches when moving forward to the next half-century. I am thankful to 
the Programme and Services Committee, led by Hong Eng and supported by Jason and Pak Shun, for 
their regular reviews of the services and charting the Centre’s strategic planning sessions. A special 
note of thanks to Pak Shun, for his guidance and leadership in structuring strategic planning through 
the past three years. 

Through the two strategic planning sessions, we reaffirmed our mission to enhance the personal 
and relational well-being of the community of Singapore through counselling and our vision to advance 
systemic thinking and practices in training and consultation services. It was heart-warming to see 
the Management Committee members and the staff in conversations together. The sessions were 
a thorough and fruitful discussion on the opportunities, challenges and brainstorming of goals and 
strategies. 

The IPC status was up for review by MSF (Sector Licensing and Regulation Division), and the 
Centre attained the renewal successfully for the next three years till 31 August 2020. There were a few 
proposed amendments to the constitution which MSF has recommended to strengthen the governance 
of the Centre. We will raise these amendments for approval at the Annual General Meeting (AGM). 

An interesting development for the Centre was the implementation of Goods and Service Tax (GST) 
with effect from 1st July 2017. The Centre was required by IRAS to register for GST since our income 
had passed the SGD one million mark. We paid to IRAS about SGD 42,000 towards GST as it was 
backdated to September 2016. We were able to have a smooth transition in the implementation of GST, 
thanks to the service users who were understanding towards the additional payment charged for GST.

I want to commend the Finance and Personnel Committee, led by Alastair and supported by Fook 
Kay, Josephine, Dorothy and John. They improved the benefits and compensations by working on an 
upward adjustment to the staff’s salaries, using   NCSS salary scale and guidelines as a reference 
for the past two years. We are grateful for Fook Kay, who contributed to the review of the Centre’s 
investment policy and Josephine, who worked behind the scene, in revising the Centre’s salary scale 
to ensure its financial sustainability.

A significant development was the change in performance management. The yearly increment 
was awarded to staff according to the centre’s performance and no longer based on a fixed increment 
as it was in the past years. It aims to provide fairer compensation for staff who have strived to work 
competently and efficiently.

The Audit Committee, led by Kit Choy and supported by Tee Loon and Clement, was working towards 
the review of policies that would strengthen the governance of the Centre. Their recommendations 
enabled the Management Committee not to lose sight of the essentials while we move forward.

Last but not least, the Management Committee would not be able to accomplish the goals without 
the hard work and cooperation of the amazing staff team! Their willingness to strive for excellence in 
service delivery has enabled the Centre to continue to live up to its brand name which was established 
over the past five decades.

Rose Boon
Chairperson
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REVIEW

In a blink of an eye, one year has passed since we celebrated the 50th Anniversary of CCC in 
2016.  The 51st year of CCC was buzzing with activities in counselling, training and consultation. I am 
grateful to the staff team who has been working tirelessly and in unity to fulfil the mission and vision 
of CCC. Their commitment and devotion has enabled CCC to reach out to clients who are in need of 
social and psychological support as well as to contribute to the professional development of social 
service professionals.

Services

The Year 2017 saw an overall increase in both Counselling (funded service) and Training (non-
funded service) albeit a slight dip in consultation (non-funded service).

Counselling

There was an average of 10% increase in the number of new cases received compared to the 
past three years. The rising figure in new cases could indicate that more people are becoming aware 
of counselling and are open to seeking help. 47% of these new clients were referred by family and 
friends, an evidence which might indicate that CCC remained a household name for counselling 
service in Singapore. 

It is worth noting that 80% of the participating employers in the “Employee Assistance Scheme” 
were from the social service sector. Employers in the social service sector are increasingly aware of 
the impact of work on the employee’s well-being, family, social relationships and vice versa. They 
are more open to provide employees with the benefit of paid counselling services to promote their 
personal development.

Due to the rising demand for counselling service, the waiting time for clients to secure 
appointments has increased to four weeks. The staff team has been working on tight schedules to 
cope with the demands while the management continues to recruit more therapists. 

Although we had collected a total counselling fees of $283,113, it was insufficient to cover the 
manpower and operational costs required to serve the rising number of clients. We are therefore 
grateful to NCSS in continuing to fund our Counselling Service.

A highlight of the Counselling Service was the good report received from MSF after an onsite 
audit of Mandatory Counselling Programme (MCP) in February 2018. Despite the recent change in the 
funding model of MSF, we would continue to participate in MCP as it is a mean to engage clients on 
deep psychological and relational issues that are beyond the presenting issues of court orders.

Training

A significant development in training service was the launch of two certificate courses, namely, 
the inaugural runs of the Post Graduate Certificate in Family-based casework supervision training for 
FSCs and the Post Graduate Certificate in working with the emotional world of children. These two 
training courses were developed in response to the increasing demands for training in supervision 
and in working with children and families in the community.

In addition, there were two other new short-term training courses developed for specialist 
agencies, namely the Divorced Support Specialist Agencies (DSSA) and HCA Hospice Care.

The quality of training for these new training programmes was highly rated, as the satisfaction 
feedback from trainees was excellent, consistently scoring above 4.5 out of 5 points. 

Future runs for the courses are planned on a need basis. I am happy to report that to-date the 
Family-based casework supervision training for FSCs is already in its 3rd run since the commencement 
of its inaugural run in March 2018. 

With the increase in manpower and operational costs, the fees for our diploma programmes 
(namely, Clinical Supervision, Counselling Practice and Working with Couples and Families) were 
revised on a gradual basis throughout the past three years. Despite the fee increase, these diploma 
programmes continue to be oversubscribed. 

Consultation

There was an increase in the types of requests for Consultation. Besides Clinical consultation, we 
received requests for consultations on casework management and supervision of supervision. It could 
be due to the increase in the need for clinical skills and systemic thinking in the different types of work 
that the Social Service Professionals undertake in the home agencies. 

Another significant development in Consultation was the adjustments to the consultation fee for 
individual and group sessions in order to meet the rising operation and manpower costs.

Administration 

To strengthen the Centre’s governance and operational efficiency, we embarked on developing a 
“customer relationship management system” by appointing an external IT Consultant. It is hoped that 
the new IT system will improve information accessibility and enhance service delivery to service users. 
It will help to streamline and automate work processes, as well as to gather data more efficiently for 
reporting purposes. 

We are grateful that the application for VCF to develop the IT system was successful. The Centre 
obtained funding of up to 80% of the total projected cost to set up the system within a 14-month period 
(September 2017-October 2018). 

Lastly, I would like to express gratefulness for the ardent support shown by the Management 
Committee and the staff team. Their faithfulness to the mission is evident in their daily work and 
service, as they sacrifice their time in striving together as a team to empower individuals, families 
and their communities.

Ruth Chua
Executive Director
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STAFF MEMBERS COUNSELLING

This financial year (1st April 2017 to 31st March 2018) saw an 11% increase in the number of new 
cases received compared to the previous year (1st April 2016 to 31st March 2017). This increase saw 
a corresponding marginal increase of 2% in the number of counselling sessions conducted (Figure 1) 
and a 6% increase in the total cases seen over the last financial year. 

PRESENTING CONCERNS

A revision to the classification of problem codes came into effect on 1st April 2017. The intent 
of the revision was to better capture the presenting concerns of clients with a sharper focus on the 
description of the problem. 

The major concerns presented at the Centre were issues of Mental Health (31%), Couple/Marital 
(14%) and Family (11%) relationships. Professional colleagues from the mental health and social service 
sectors seeking counselling for the personal growth, contributed 9% of the cases seen (Figure 2).
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Figure 1: Cases and sessions from 1st April 2014 to 31st March 2018
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Figure 1: Cases and sessions from 2014 to 2017

We are pleased to have one new staff added to our team. Ms Jadelyn Lim (Mrs Jade Low), an experienced 
Social Worker in the social service sector, joined us as Therapist in January 2018.
 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: Ms Ruth Chua

CLINICAL DIRECTOR: Mrs Juliana Toh 

PRINCIPAL THERAPISTS:
Ms Foo Soo Jen    Mrs Sharon Sng (part-time)

SENIOR THERAPISTS:
Mrs Rebecca Lo (part-time)  Mr Terence Tan
Mr Elijah Sim (part-time)  Mr Tony Ong
Mr Steven Soh (part-time) 

THERAPISTS:    
Ms Valerie Oh     Ms Cheryl Lim
Ms Charlotte Chen    Mrs Jade Low

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 
ADMIN MANAGER: Mrs Karen Quek

ADMIN EXECUTIVES:
Mrs Peggy Wong   Ms Leung Mui Fang

RECEPTIONIST: Mrs Julia Lye

From left back row: Cheryl Lim, Charlotte Chen, Terence Tan, Juliana Toh, Steven Soh, Foo Soo Jen, Sharon Sng,
Peggy Wong, Leung Mui Fang, Ruth Chua, Karen Quek, Tony Ong, Valerie Oh, Rebecca Lo, Julia Lye, Elijah Sim.

Not in picture: Mrs Jade Low
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REFERRAL SOURCE

It is worth noting that 28% of the clients received were referred by other social service organizations 
in contrast to 12% in the previous year. The counselling service of the Centre continues to augment the 
services offered by Social Service Organisations (Figure 3).

The following figures present the demographics of clients by age, race and marital status: 

EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAMME (EAP)

The Employee Assistance Programme (EAP) is an employer sponsored service offered to 
employees who might be in need of counselling for personal or work related concerns that may affect 
their job performance or relationships. 

The following organizations engaged the Centre to provide short term counselling to their employees. 
1. Children’s Cancer Foundation (CCF)  6. National Heart Centre Singapore (NHCS)
2. Dover Park Hospice (DPH)    7. Oogachaga (OC)
3. DP Architects     8. Persatuan Permudi Islam SIngapura (PPIS) 
4. Hospice Care Association (HCA)   9. Singapore Cancer Society (SCS)
5. Methodist Welfare Services (MWS)  10. The Law Society of Singapore

Juliana Toh
Clinical Director
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WHAT OUR CLIENTS HAVE TO SAY ABOUT 
THEIR COUNSELLING EXPERIENCES?     

I come here with the 
hope of having my 
problems solved by 
the therapist. After 
several sessions, 
I found myself 
eventually. And 
this discovery is 
important for me to 
move on.

(Female, 56)

I am able to 
understand my 
family members’ 
perspectives better; 
and cope with my 
own feelings.

(Female, 23)

The relaxation 
techniques and 
observing how my 
body is feeling that 
my therapist shared 
allow me to manage 
my feelings and 
thoughts better. 

(Male, 35) 

Through the guidance 
of the therapist, the 
couple counselling 
has helped us to 
remember the good 
points of each other; 
rekindle the love and 
respect that we have 
taken for granted. 

(Female, 49)



CONSULTATION TRAINING

The Centre provides external clinical consultation that is conducted either with an individual or 
a group in the home agency. It tailors to the developmental needs of the individual Social Service 
Professional and the practice context of the social service organisations. It is a safe space for 
practitioners to explore issues and challenges in their direct practice and to promote professional 
growth through self-reflexivity. In recent years, the Centre received an increasing number of requests 
for consultations of supervision of supervision for supervisors and senior staff members. 

There was a total of 622 consultation sessions in the year of 2017. The figure below shows the 
percentages of agencies and organisations engaged from the different sectors.

Note:
 Community Agencies refers to social service organisations that serve specialised populations
and issues in the community such as women, children, youth and family services, mental health
and family violence.
 Government Organisations refers to Ministries such as MSF, MOE, Singapore Prisons Service etc.
 Health care Organisations refers to hospitals or organisations serving specialised health issues
such as Children Cancer Foundation, Hospice Care etc.

Community Agencies, 
41%

Family Service 
Centres (FSCs), 38%

Healthcare 
Organisations, 11%

Educational Institues, 
5%

Government 
Organisations, 5%

(I) CERTIFICATE AND DIPOLMA PROGRAMMES

Programmes Enrolment

1. Post graduate certificate in systemic thinking and approaches: Applications in social 
work context and clinical practice (PGC) 40

2. Post graduate certificate in working with the emotional world of children (CEWC) 23

3. Post graduate certificate in family-based casework supervision training for Family 
Service Centres (First Run) 20

4. Graduate diploma in counselling practice (GDIP) 17

5. Diploma in clinical supervision (DCS) 15

6. Post graduate diploma in working with couples and families: a systemic approach (PGDCF) 12

Total 127

1. POST GRADUATE CERTIFICATE IN SYSTEMIC THINKING AND APPROACHES – APPLICATIONS IN 
SOCIAL WORK CONTEXT AND CLINICAL PRACTICE (PGC)

On 1st August 2017, 25 social service practitioners began their learning journey in the PGC 
course which ended on 19th September 2017. In the following year 2018, another 15 social service 
practitioners attended this course from 20th March to 22nd May.  The trainees came from various 
practice contexts such as hospitals, family service centres, community services and hospices.

The PGC course offers a broad understanding of the over-arching principles and concepts in 
systemic thinking and the various family therapy approaches in working with families, couples and 
individuals. It also focuses on the integration of systemic approach to their specific social work context 
and clinical practice. This emphasis allows the trainees to appreciate the relevance of their learning 
and be encouraged to apply their acquired skills and knowledge in their work. 

In these two cohorts, the diversity of the trainees’ practice contexts further enriched the flavor 
of the course and added richness to the learning experience for both the trainees and trainers. The 
trainees expressed positive feedback in terms of how the course had enriched their perspectives in 
conceptualizing their cases.  For some trainees, being taught the different family therapy approaches,  
“broadened their perspectives in 
perceiving problems”.  For others, 
the course had enhanced their 
reflexivity and influenced them “to 
be more intentional in deciding their 
interventions”. 

In our training programmes, 
we have endeavored to create a 
collaborative and experiential 
learning experience for all trainees. 
It is also our hope that the PGC 
course will continue to enrich the 
knowledge and skill sets of social 
service practitioners in helping their 
clients. 

Cheryl Lim
Programme Chair

Trainees of PGC Class – March-May 2018 cohort
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Ruth Chua
Executive Director



2. POST GRADUATE CERTIFICATE IN WORKING WITH THE EMOTIONAL WORLD OF CHILDREN (CEWC)

This certificate course was first conducted in 2006. In response to the many requests from 
professionals in the field, this course was relaunched on 8th September 2017. The course aims to 
equip social service practitioners with practical skills in understanding and connecting with what lies 
within the emotional world of children as well as facilitating a bridge between their world and that of 
the adults in their lives.  

23 social workers, counsellors and social work associates from various social service agencies, 
such as family service centres and medical settings, started the process of understanding and 
connecting with children and their families. 

In the 12 weeks that followed the commencement of the course, trainers and participants engaged 
with ideas in working with and engaging children and their families through lectures, sharing of case 
examples and skills practice.  

Participants expressed that they had “learnt a lot and really enjoyed the process”, are “very 
grateful for the valuable sharing by the trainers and fellow course-mates”, and had a “fruitful time of 
learning”.

We are grateful for the opportunity to engage with social service professionals from various 
organisations and settings, and we trust that the time of learning together will be a springboard to 
making a difference in the lives of children and their families! 

Rebecca Lo 
Senior Therapist

3. POST GRADUATE CERTIFICATE IN FAMILY-BASED CASEWORK SUPERVISION TRAINING FOR 
FAMILY SERVICE CETNRES (FSC-FBCS) (First Run)

The FSC-CSWP (Family Service Centres Code of Social Work Practice) was implemented in 2014 
to raise and articulate professional standards adopted by the larger FSC practice community.  With the 
roll-out of the FSC-CSWP on-boarding training in 2015, the sector also recognised that the translation 
of knowledge into actual “doing” is equally essential in ensuring that professional thinking manifests 
in the salient actions of FSC social work practitioners (SWPs).  To facilitate this growth in SWPs, 
supervision is pivotal.  

The training curriculum of Post-graduate Certificate in FSC-FBCS was first developed in December 
2016, following the award of ITQ (Invitation To Quote) by the Ministry of Social and Family Development 
(MSF) to CCC. 

As part of the curriculum development process, we conducted two intensive rounds of FSC sectorial 
engagement between April and July 2017.  In the first round, a total of 88 social work practitioners 
(5 master practice leaders, 49 SSWPs who are supervisors and 32 SWPs who are supervisees) 
participated in various engagement sessions. The first round of engagement was instrumental in 
identifying the needs and challenges faced by SSWPs in both their direct and supervisory practices 
using FSC-CSWP practice principles.  At the second round of engagement, representatives from the 
first round were given an overview of the initial draft of the training curriculum.  The consolidated 
feedback allowed for refinements to be made to the curriculum thus ensuring greater relevance to 
the prevailing needs of SSWPs.  

Overall, the entire sectorial 
engagement experience helped to 
reaffirm our faith in the FSC sector 
which: 

• remains committed to the 
   well-being of the clients they 
   serve;
• believes that CSWP promises 
   benefits and wants to find ways    
   to harness its potentials;
• aspires to be more intentional 
   in their practice; and 
• hopes to reclaim reflective 
   practice through the intentional 
   use of the self

After the rigorous sectorial engagement exercise, the training curriculum was finally developed 
and jointly adopted by CCC and MSF.   

On 20 February 2018, the inaugural run of the “Post graduate certificate in family-based casework 
supervision (FSC-FBCS) training for Family Service Centres” was successfully launched with 20 
trainees. This is an intermediate level of supervision training designed to support FSC supervisors 
with at least one year of supervisory experience to cope with the changing demands of supervision in 
relation to the Family Service Centres Code of Social Work Practice (FSC-CSWP). The training focuses 
on equipping senior social work practitioners (SSWPs) in their supervisory function so that they can 
better support and guide their supervisees in engaging and working with families more effectively.  

The Centre will continue to respond 
to the needs of the FSCs by providing 
additional runs of supervision training 
through the year.

Elijah Sim and Tony Ong
Curriculum and Programme Chairs

An engagement session with SSWPs to better understand the needs of practitioners

Trainees of the Inaugural run of the Post-Graduate Certificate in FSC-FBCS  
having a group discussion in class.
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Class of GDIP 2017/18 with their supervisors, Cheryl, Terence and Charlotte 

4. GRADUATE DIPLOMA IN COUNSELLING PRACTICE (GDIP)

Our 11th GDIP cohort, which comprised of 17 social service practitioners from various settings 
such as Family Service Centres, hospitals and other health-care institutions, successfully concluded 
its ten-month learning journey in May 2018. This 300-hours part-time programme equips trainees 
with knowledge and skills essential to competent counselling. Its distinctive feature is that 60% of the 
programme time is devoted to hands-on counselling practice, as well as supervision of practice.  As 
such, trainees were offered the opportunity to experience “live” supervision of their clinical work – 
many of whom were experiencing this for the very first time in their professional careers.

Despite the arduous journey comprising of many challenges, anxiety-provoking moments and 
long training hours, the trainees experienced the course programme as one that greatly enhanced 
their professional and personal development. In some of their own words…

➢ “The programme is very good, especially on practicality in skills. Programme is very rigorous 
but helpful in my learning journey.”

➢ “Trainers are nurturing and professional in facilitating our professional development. Course 
assignments and exams are helpful for us to consolidate our learnings. Lots of opportunities for 
application.”

➢ “Handouts were helpful. Examples were given which were helpful for application. Supervisors 
per group were nurturing in developing/guiding individuals in the group learning. Facilities were nice 
at CCC, very cosy.”

➢ “Trainers were flexible in attending to the needs of the trainees and still able to meet stipulated 
objectives of class. They model what they hope to impart to us, which I feel is crucial to learning.”

➢ “Thank you for creating a safe environment for sharing, speaking and learning, and for 
consistently listening and being patient and gracious.”

Words such as these greatly warm the hearts of our three programme supervisors, as well as those 
of our other CCC trainers who have made rich contributions through the sharing of their knowledge 
and experiences over the range of topics covered in the training sessions. Indeed, without the precious 
commitment of CCC professional and admin staff, who served in various roles such as trainers, 
supervisors, clinical examiners, markers, professional development (PD) therapists, administrators 
as well as facilities and logistics coordinators, the resounding success of this programme would not 
have been  possible. 

In the coming years, the GDIP course seeks to continue to stay relevant to evolving social service 
competency needs, while retaining its 
distinctive feature of being a course 
that is intensely practice-oriented, 
with huge emphasis placed on the 
integration of theory with clinical 
practice. We are encouraged by the 
continued high number of interested 
applicants annually, and we hope to 
maintain course delivery standards 
that satisfy their keen enthusiasm for 
learning and growth.

Terence Tan
Programme Chair

5. DIPLOMA IN CLINICAL SUPERVISION (DCS)

The DCS programme equips trainee-supervisors with the knowledge and skills that are essential 
to be a competent clinical supervisor.  This programme is unique as it offers trainees the opportunity 
to experience “live” supervision of their clinical work as well “live” supervision of their supervisory 
practice in their respective work contexts.  We support the trainees’ learning about themselves as 
a therapist and a supervisor: increasing one’s reflexivity, 
relational attunement in the therapeutic and supervisory 
relationships and the  person of the therapist-supervisor. 
This helps the trainees to develop their skills and theoretical 
knowledge into a personal supervisory signature. 

The 15 trainees from the Jul 2017-May 2018 cohort are all 
senior social workers and senior counsellors from different 
work contexts, ranging from hospitals, family service centers, 
a transitional shelter and schools.  To maintain close personal 
attention in supervision, we have maintained this year’s 
supervisor-trainee ratio for the programme.  

The feedback from the trainees have been consistently 
positive. These are some of their comments “…a safe and 
trusting environment for all of us. Supervision was effective in 
enhancing my growth both as a therapist and as a supervisor” 
and “…the experience of live / video supervision / group was 
a very valuable learning process. The knowledge and skills 
acquired were relevant to my work and I could integrate into 
my practice.” 

Sharon Sng
Programme Chair

Class of DCS 2017/18 with their 
supervisors, Sharon, Juliana and Elijah

6. POST GRADUATE DIPLOMA IN WORKING WITH COUPLES AND FAMILIES: A SYSTEMIC APPROACH 
(PGDCF)

The third run of the “Post Graduate Diploma in Working with Couples and Families: a Systemic 
Approach” began on 5th January 2018. 

This is a 315-hour part time programme set up to equip trainees to work with couples and families 
from a systemic framework, which is an approach apt in grappling with the complexity of relational 
issues and challenges. The course programme provides a strong grounding on systemic theories and 
approaches and covers specific issues such as working with emotions and high conflicts, betrayal and 
infidelity, relational violence, separation and divorce, post-divorce and reconstituted families, trauma, 
sex and sexuality, to name a few. Besides imparting theoretical inputs to foster a deeper systemic 
understanding of the dynamics of relationships, this programme’s distinctive feature is the emphasis 
on providing guidance and supervision on clinical practice with couples and families to strengthen 
theory-practice integration.  

 
Among this cohort of twelve trainees, five are currently working in family service centres, while 

another five are from the medical setting, and two are from counselling and systemic therapy centres. 

The trainees have begun taking turns to present and receive feedback through video and live 
supervision on their direct work with couples and families from their respective home agencies. The 
learning experience through adopting the team approach has been experienced as enriching. The 
trainees learn not only from the course supervisors, but also from the multiple perspectives and 
diverse practice experiences of their peers, who hail from various practice contexts. 
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We have the privilege of having two adjunct trainers from the United Kingdom in our teaching team. 
In February 2018, Dr Barbara McKay, Director of Institute of Family Therapy (London), conducted three 
days of intensive training and practice, focussed on “CMM or Coordinated Management of Meaning 
in working with Couples and Families”. Overall, the trainees found the sessions helpful in deepening 
their understanding and application of the concepts of CMM in their clinical practice with couples and 
families. 

The second round of intensive 
training and practice was held 
in May 2018 and anchored by
Mr James Wilson, a registered Systemic 
Psychotherapist from United Kingdom.  
The focus was on working with 
children, young people and their 
families. 

As the programme moves 
towards the practice component in 
the second Semester, we look forward 
to continuing this learning journey 
with the trainees as they grow further 
through engaging in more reflective 
practice. 

Foo Soo Jen
Programme Chair

Post Graduate Diploma in Working with Couples and Families: A Systemic 
Approach (PGDCF) Class of 2018 with their supervisors, Soo Jen and Rebecca

Experiential learning with reflection on action (ROA)

(II) SHORT TERM TRAINING COURSES

As part of the mission of Counselling and Care Centre, we provide training to mental health and 
social service professionals and para-counsellors involved in providing quality help to people.  

The number of participants for short term training courses has been doubling with each financial 
year since 2014/15.  In this financial year 2017/18, the number of short-term training provided has 
doubled that of 2016/17 (excluding the number of participants from the Jubilee Conference organized 
in the celebration of CCC’s 50th anniversary) amounting to 1,489 participants.

The following are some highlights of short-term training courses: 

Case Management Training for Divorce 
Support Specialist Agencies

The provision of training on Case 
Management for the Divorce Support 
Specialist Agencies focused on enabling 
the caseworkers to develop a clear 
understanding of the different stages of 
case management and  integrating their 
theories and frameworks into professional 
case management practice. 

Workshops conducted by Overseas Trainers

Mr. John Burnham, a systemic psychotherapist from Birmingham Children’s Hospital in United 
Kingdom, conducted two workshops in May 2017.  On 18th and 19th May 2017, he conducted a 
workshop on “Reflexivity in Systemic 
Practice with Families”, followed with 
a workshop on “Reflexive Practice 
in Systemic Supervision” on 22nd 
and 23nd May 2017.  During the 
workshops, Mr. Burnham emphasized 
the importance of self-reflexivity and 
relational reflexivity in a practitioner’s 
work with families and supervisees 
utilizing the CMM (Coordinated 
Management of Meaning) lens.  He 
also introduced and demonstrated 
the use of the practice framework 
of Approach-Method-Technique as 
well as the PPRRactice (Problems-
Possibilities/Resources-Restraints) 
Map. Participants generally found the 
concepts taught to be helpful in their 
work with their clients as well as with 
supervisees.

A demonstration by John Burnham in “Reflexive practice with families and couples”

A role-play demonstration by Dr Barbara McKay at her workshop. 

Dr. Barbara McKay, Director of 
The Institute of Family Therapy in 
United Kingdom, also conducted a 
workshop on “Key systemic ideas 
that have most utility when working 
with families and clients in social 
work context” on 26th and 27th Feb 
2018. Most participants found the 
coverage of the workshop relating 
to risk assessment in their context 
of work extremely useful especially 
when Barbara demonstrated the 
application of systemic concepts 
within the context of cases with risks 
through case examples and role 
plays.
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A debrief by Tony (standing) after a role play during Suicide Assessment 
& Intervention Workshop in Mongolia 

Steven Soh and the participants from Life Spring Counselling and Care Centre (Jakarta)

In Mongolia, JCS International 
Transformation TRACC Project also 
benefitted from CSRP when Mr. Tony Ong 
conducted a training on Suicide Assessment 
and Intervention for 19 participants from 
a Men’s shelter, Home and Alcoholic 
Treatment Centre, the Prison’s Fellowship 
and a non-government organization 
working with families in poverty.  Tony also 
conducted Case Management training for 
another 10 participants from the Men’s 
shelter, Alcoholic Treatment Centre and 
Prison’s Fellowship, and provided case 
consultation for a counsellor from the 
Alcoholic Treatment Centre.

Overseas’ Training Workshops 

Counselling and Care Centre extends its support to charitable organizations in the neighbouring 
countries through its Corporate Social Responsibilities Programme (CSRP) by providing pro-bono 
services in the areas of training and consultation.  CSRP was extended to Life Spring Counselling 
and Care Centre (Jakarta) through Mr. Steven Soh’s training in Bowen Family Systems Theory for 50 
participants on 25-27 August 2017.

Forging ahead, our Centre hopes to continue on in a spirit of excellence, to provide high-quality 
training programmes that align closely to the needs of the people-helping community, with the chief 
end of enabling them to better care for the psycho-socio-emotional wellbeing of those in need. 

Tony Ong
Senior Therapist

List of short-term training courses conducted

Organisation Title of training Date Trainer(s) No. of 
participants

1
National University of 
Singapore - medical 

students

Counselling elective and 
placement

4-5 Apr 17
25-26
Jul 17

20 & 21 Sep 17
21 & 22 Nov 17
30 & 31 Jan 18 

(5 runs)

Cheryl Lim
Charlotte Chen

Terence Tan 
Valerie Oh

50 (10 
participants 

per run)

2 Social Service 
Professionals

Reflexive practice with 
families and couples 18-19 May 17 Mr. John 

Burnham 89

3 Social Service 
Professionals

Reflexive practice in 
systemic supervision 22-23 May 17 Mr. John 

Burnham 87

4

JCS International
Transformation TRACC

Project
(Mongolia)

Case Management 
(Workshop)

Suicide Assessment & 
Intervention (Workshop)

5-10 Jun 17 Tony Ong 29

5 AWARE Working with clients with 
marital issues 3-4 Jul 17 Sharon Sng 8

6

Social Work 
Accreditation & Advisory 

Board Seminar 2017: 
Social work supervision 

in Singapore

Perspectives and 
experiences across 

countries (Plenary Session)

7 Jul 17

Ruth Chua 250

Supervision
of supervision (Workshop) Juliana Toh 60

The use of attachment 
theory in social work 

supervision (Workshop)
Tony Ong 60

Self-care for Supervisors 
(activity)

Charlotte Chen
(co-facilitator) 250

7 Hospice Care
Association (HCA)

Basic counselling skills for 
health care professionals

1-2 Aug 17
30-31 Aug 17

(2 runs)

Juliana Toh
Terence Tan 61

8

National University of 
Singapore, Social work 

department
(Masters in social work)

Family Systems Theory & 
Intervention

16, 23, 30 Aug 17; 
6, 13, 20 Sep 17;

4, 11, 16, 25 Oct 17;  
1, 8, 15 Nov 17

Tony Ong
Foo Soo Jen 50

9
Life Spring

Counselling and Care 
Centre (Jakarta)

Working with clients with 
marital issues 25-27 Aug 17 Steven  Soh 60

10 PSA Corporation Ltd Supporting Team Members 
Through Crisis 4 Sep 17 Sharon Sng 10
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Organisation Title of training Date Trainer(s) No. of 
participants

11
HEART @ Fei Yue Child 
Protection Specialist 

Centre

Clinical Supervision 
(Workshop)

5 Sep, 3 Oct, 7 Nov 
17; 9 Jan 18 Tony  Ong 6

12 Lakeside Family 
Services Therapeutic Group Work 9 & 10 Nov 17 Terence Tan 12

13 Institute of Mental 
Health

Singapore Mental Health 
Conference - "Systemic 

Approach - A Family 
Therapy Overview”

9 Sep 17 Juliana  Toh 150

14 Hospice Care 
Association

Furthering systemic 
application in palliative 

care practice

19 Sep, 3 Oct, 17 
Oct, 31 Oct 17

Juliana  Toh
Terence Tan 12

15 PSA Corporation Ltd  Supporting Team Members 
through Crisis 29 Nov 17 Juliana Toh 12

16 MSF-Divorce Support 
Specialist Agencies Case Management Training

25-26 Jan,
1- 2 Feb, 

22 Feb, 23 Mar, 26 
Apr,

25 May 18

Tony Ong
Ruth Chua
Jade Low

21

17 Palliative Care
Counselling Course for 

Healthcare Professionals 
in the Hospice Setting

3 Feb 18 Juliana Toh 11

18 Social Service 
Professionals

Key Systemic Ideas that 
have Most Utility when 
Working with Families 

and Clients in Social Work 
Contexts

(Assessment, Analysis, 
Interventions and 

Reflections)

26 & 27 Feb 18 Dr Barbara 
McKay 39

19 CIMB Bank Acute Traumatic Stress 
Crisis (Workshop) 23 Mar 18 Juliana  Toh 20

20 AWARE Impact of divorce on 
children 23 Mar 18 Ruth Chua 8

GRADUATION CEREMONY Date: 28th July 2017
Venue: YWCA Fort Canning Lodge

President
Singapore Association for CounsellingMr Sam Kuna

Opening Speech by  Guest of Honour

Executive Director, Ms Ruth Chua, 
presenting a token of appreciation 
to Mr Sam Kuna.

Opening Speech by Vice-Chairperson 
of CCC, Mrs Sze Toh Hong Eng.
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Graduates of “Post Graduate Diploma in Working with Couples and Families:
A Systemic Approach” posing for a proud moment with

Mr Sam Kuna (fourth from left).

One of the graduates, Ms June Wong, shared her reflections of learning.

Graduates of the “Diploma in Clinical Supervision” presented their special 
item, a song entitled “One Day”, composed by Ms Janet Lim.

Another proud cohort of graduates of the “Diploma in Clinical Supervision” 
standing tall with Mr Sam Kuna (third from left).

22 23



Last but not least, graduates from the “Graduate Diploma in Counselling 
Practice” with Mr Sam Kuna (third from left).

In for a treat special item perfomance by the class of the
Graduate Diploma in Counselling Practice.

The Centre believes in the ongoing development of its staff in order to continue to provide quality 
service. This is evident in the following list of training programmes and conferences that its staff 
members have undergone this financial year.

Apart from training, staff members also continued to grow professionally under the clinical 
supervision provided by our Clinical Director, Mrs Juliana Toh. Staff team also had the privilege to 
seek consultation from Mr John Burnham, a visiting UK Master Trainer and Practitioner in systemic 
practice in May 2017.  

Three staff members, Mrs Rebecca Lo, Ms Foo Soo Jen and Mr Steven Soh, have also taken 
their sabbatical break. Some of their sabbatical highlights include attending overseas’ workshops 
and conferences.

Staff Members Title Organised by

All therapists

Reflexivity in Systemic Practice with 
Families 

By John Burnham
18-19 May 2017

Counselling and Care Centre

All therapists

Reflexive Practice in Systemic 
Supervision 

By John Burnham
22-23 May 2017

Counselling and Care Centre

Steven Soh The Serving Leader 2-day Seminar
24 & 25 May 2017

Integrative Learning Corporation 
Pte Ltd

Charlotte Chen, Cheryl Lim, Juliana 
Toh, Terence Tan, Ruth Chua & Tony 
Ong

Social Work Supervision Seminar
7 Jul 2017

Social Work Accreditation and 
Advisory Board

Ruth Chua

Family Justice Practice Forum 
2017: Family Justice 2020- Through 

the Right Doors
14 Jul 2017

Family Justice Practice Forum 
Committee

Ruth Chua
Human Resource Workshop on 

Talent Attraction
21 Jul 2017

Social Service Institute

Charlotte Chen, Cheryl Lim, Juliana 
Toh, Ruth Chua,  Steven Soh, 
Terence Tan & Tony Ong

Interpersonal Neurobiology: its 
application in family therapy

By Chao Wen Tao 
6 Sep 2017

Association for Marital & Family 
Therapy Singapore

Foo Soo Jen

Annual AFT Conference 2017 “Wide 
Open Spaces: Working Creatively 

and Staying Connected”
at Dunblane, Scotland

14-6 Sep 2017

Association for Family Therapy & 
Systemic Practice

Ruth Chua
The role of Boards in Strategic 

Planning
18 Sep 2017

Social Service Institute

Charlotte Chen, Foo Soo Jen, Ruth 
Chua, Sharon Sng, & Terence Tan

Narrative Therapy e-Book Launch
3 Oct 2017 Social Service Institute

STAFF TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT
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Staff Members Title Organised by

Foo Soo Jen

4th International Conference on 
Dialogical Practices: “Getting 

Closer, Towards a New Human 
Alliance”

at Turin, Italy
12-14 Oct 2017

Salesian University Institute of 
Torino (IUSTO) with Network for 

Dialogical Practices

Ruth Chua, Juliana Toh, Sharon Sng 
& Terence Tan

SAC 35th Anniversary Conference
3 Nov 2017

Singapore Association for 
Counselling

Elijah Sim, Ruth Chua, Steven Soh 
& Tony Ong

Introduction to DBT (Dialectical 
Behaviour Therapy)- concepts and 

skills 
By Dr Peter King
22-23 Jan 2018

The SEL Network

Cheryl Lim, Ruth Chua & Tony Ong

Key Systemic Ideas that have Most 
Utility when Working with Families 
and Clients in Social Work Context

By Dr Barbara McKay
26-27 Feb 2018

Counselling and Care Centre

Jade Low Diploma in Clinical Supervision
July 2017-May 2018 Counselling and Care Centre

Valerie Oh 
Emotionally-Focused Couples 

Therapy (EFCT) Module B
24-27 Jan 2018

Caper Spring

Steven Soh

Understanding the Regulations and 
Code of Governance for Charities 

& IPCs
31 Jan 2018

Social Service Institute

Steven Soh
Strategic Thinking for Impactful 

Outcomes in Non-profits
1-2 Feb 2018

Social Service Institute

Valerie Oh 
Family Therapy with Professor Karl 

Tomm 
5-7 Feb 2018

Khoo Teck Puat  Hospital & Ang Mo 
Kio Family Service Centre

Steven Soh

Two-Week Intensive Scholarship 
Program in Bowen Family Systems 

Theory
26 Feb – 9 Mar 2018

Family Systems Institute Sydney, 
Australia

Sharon Sng & Terence Tan FAMBAM Network Meeting
29 Mar 2018 National Council of Social Service

While been given opportunities for their development, staff members also contributed their 
expertise to the field in various platforms. The following is a list of their professional contributions.

PROFESSIONAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Staff Members Contributions

Elijah Sim & Tony Ong • Board Member of Ministry of Social and Family Development Review 
   Committee 5

Foo Soo Jen • Member of Multi-Disciplinary Team (MDT) for Big Love Child Protection 
   Centre

Juliana Toh & Tony Ong • Workshop speakers at Social Work Supervision Seminar 2017

Juliana Toh • Panellist at SAC 35th Anniversary Conference 2017

Rebecca Lo & Sharon Sng 

• An  article  co-written  and  published  in  the  Journal  of  Family  Therapy  
   titled  “Co-constructing family therapy in the Asian Chinese family 
   diasporas of mainland China, Malaysia, Macau, Singapore and Taiwan”. Full 
   reference is as follows:  Sim,T., Fang, X.Y., Chan, S., Loy, J.T.C., Sng, S., Lo, 
   R., Chao, W.T. and  Singh, R. (2017). Journal of Family Therapy, 39 (2), 
   131–150.  doi: 10.1111/1467-6427.

Ruth Chua

• Member of Leadership Development and Selection Panel, National Council 
   of Social Service
• Member of the Programme Advisory Committee, School of Human 
   Development and Social Services, Singapore University of Social Sciences

Sharon Sng

• Member of the SSI Community of Practice for Narrative Therapy and 
   Community Work  
• One of the authors of the electronic publication “Re-experiencing the
   Rojak - Narrative Therapy and Community Work in Singapore” 
• Presenter at “2017 Narrative Practice Conference: Honouring History, 
   Weaving Hopes”, Hong Kong Baptist University, Hong Kong, 8-9 June 2017
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STAFF RETREAT

“Rejuvenate Me”(14-16 March 2018)

A total of 31 staff and family members embarked on a much-awaited retreat to Malacca, with the 
focus on rest and rejuvenation. The Hatten Hotel beckoned with its cosy and comfortable rooms, and 
a family-friendly swimming pool where the staff and their families indulged in plenty of fun. 

It was a three-day family-oriented retreat, amidst balancing with a few work meetings for 
upcoming events and projects. The itinerary was fun-packed and left us with several unforgettable 
memories.  

The group was treated to mouth-watering delights at a local Peranakan restaurant, a seafood 
dinner at the Portuguese village, as well as authentic Hakka cuisine. During the free-and-easy time, 
some also ventured on to shop for local produce and sample local delicacies like Popiah, Nonya rice 
dumplings and cooling Chendol from the famous Jonker Street. 

On the second day, early-risers were taken on a refreshing and energising river walk by CCC’s 
very own guide - Juliana. Later, the group enjoyed a relaxing river cruise and a mesmerising visit 
to the interactive 3D museum. The adults had so much fun that they felt like children again! It was 
wonderful to see the staff, their children and spouses bonding well and having a jolly good time! 

Another special highlight of the entire 
retreat was the “Angels & Mortals” game, 
whereby everyone was a secret angel to 
somebody else and could do special acts 
of care, send secret messages or pass on 
small gifts to their mortals. Indeed, the 
game created an atmosphere thick with 
mystery and anticipation, and heightened 
the sense of excitement and fun. There 
was much appreciation and laughter 
when the big reveal of the identity of 
everyone’s guardian angels took place on 
the last day of the retreat. 

The three-day retreat left the entire 
group with fond experiences and re-
energized for the next lap. 

Staff and family members enjoying a good rejuvenating stretch for their 
bodies, guided by Clinical Director, Mrs Juliana Toh.

WHAT OUR CLIENTS HAVE TO SAY TO DONORS?

We appreciate all our donors, individuals and corporates such as the National Council of Social Service, 
the Community Chest and the Diocese of Singapore (Anglican) for their generosity and commitment to 
our cause of enabling our counselling service to be accessible to all.

Thank you!

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF DONATIONS

Thank you! Your assistance 
has allowed couples to keep their 
families strong, that in turn make 

communities strong.

Your support is important 
because it will allow the therapists 
to concentrate fully on their work 

with clients. 

You are important for people 
from all walks of life. We are 

all equal with different financial 
status- we all need some financial 

help at some time. 

It is vital that support is 
given so that more people 

can be helped. 
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COUNSELLING AND CARE CENTRE 
(REGISTERED UNDER THE SOCIETIES ACT, CAP. 311) 
 
 
 
STATEMENT BY THE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 
 
In the opinion of the management committee, the accompanying financial statements set out there on 

are drawn up so as to present fairly, in all material respects, the state of affairs of Counselling and 

Care Centre (“the Centre”) as at 31 March 2018 and of the results of the activities, changes in 

accumulated fund and cash flows of the Centre for the year ended on that date, and at the date of this 

statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Centre will be able to pay its debts as and 

when they fall due. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ON BEHALF OF THE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

LIONG MEE SAN 
MRS BOON SUAN LEE ENG BAK YEOW RUTH CHUA WANG SOON

Chair Honorary Treasurer Honorary Secretary  
 
 
 
 
Singapore, 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
COUNSELLING AND CARE CENTRE 
(REGISTERED UNDER THE SOCIETIES ACT, CAP. 311) 
 

 

 

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 

Opinion  

 

We have audited the financial statements of Counselling and Care Centre (the Centre), which 

comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2018, and the statement of 

comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then 

ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.  

 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the 

provisions of the Societies Act, Chapter 311 (the Societies Act), the Charities Act, Chapter 37 and 

other relevant regulations (the Charities Act and Regulations) and Financial Reporting Standards in 

Singapore (FRSs) so as to present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position as at 31 March 

2018 and of the financial performance, changes in accumulated fund and cash flows of the Centre for 

the year ended on that date. 

 

 

Basis for Opinion  

 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (SSAs). Our 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 

Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Centre in 

accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority (ACRA) Code of Professional 

Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (ACRA Code) together with the 

ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and we 

have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA 

Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our opinion. 

 

 

Other Information  

 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Statement 

by the management committee.  

 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 

financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 

misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 

misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report 

in this regard. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
COUNSELLING AND CARE CENTRE 
(REGISTERED UNDER THE SOCIETIES ACT, CAP. 311) (Continued) 
 
 
 

Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial Statements  

 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements in 
accordance with the provisions of the Societies Act, the Charities Act and Regulations and FRSs, and 
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.   
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Centre’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Centre or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  
 
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Centre’s financial reporting 
process. 
 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements.  
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 
•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control.  

 
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the centre internal control. 

 
•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management.  
 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the centre’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of 
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the centre to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
COUNSELLING AND CARE CENTRE 
(REGISTERED UNDER THE SOCIETIES ACT, CAP. 311) (Continued) 
 

 

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued) 

 

 

•  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 

internal control that we identify during our audit.  

 

 

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS  

 
In our opinion, 
 
a)  the accounting and other records required to be kept by the Centre have been properly kept with 

the provisions of the Societies Regulations enacted under the Societies Act, the Charities Act 
and Regulations; and 

 
b) the fund-raising appeals held during the year ended 31 March 2018 have been carried out in 

accordance with Regulation 6 of the Societies Regulations issued under the Societies Act and 
proper accounts and other records have been kept of the fund-raising appeals.  

 
During the course of our audit, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that during 
the year: 
 
a) the Centre has not used the donation moneys in accordance with its objectives as required 

under Regulation 11 of the Charities (Institution of a Public Character) Regulations; and 
 
b) the Centre has not complied with the requirements of Regulation 15 of the Charities (Institution 

of a Public Character) Regulations. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

CYPRESS SINGAPORE PAC 

Public Accountants and 

Chartered Accountants 

Singapore 

 

Date:  
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COUNSELLING AND CARE CENTRE

(REGISTERED UNDER THE SOCIETIES ACT, CAP. 311)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2018

Note 2018 2017

SGD SGD

ACCUMULATED FUNDS 

Unrestricted Funds

Consultancy and training 3 1,849,122      1,515,942      

Gratuity fund 4 407,650         376,960         

Anthony Yeo education fund 5 -                 -                 

Fair value adjustment reserve (11,342)          (1,976)            

2,245,430      1,890,926      

Restricted Funds 

Counselling 6 1,875,694      1,785,792      

Anthony Yeo staff development fund 7 128,790         134,572         

2,004,484      1,920,364      

4,249,914      3,811,290      

Represented by :

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Plant and equipment 8 266,278         400,921         

Intangible asset 9 34,400           -                 

Investment 10 155,261         158,350         

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories 11 8,593 9,363

Fees receivable and accrued revenue 12 228,160 260,051

Other receivables, deposits and 

prepayments 13 26,574 3,995

Fixed deposits 14 2,812,180 2,306,660

Cash at bank and on hand 1,273,707      1,258,087      

4,349,214      3,838,156      

Less :

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Advance receipts, deposit received 

and accruals 15 555,239 586,137

555,239         586,137         

NET CURRENT ASSETS 3,793,975      3,252,019      

4,249,914      3,811,290      

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Note 2018 2017

SGD SGD
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prepayments 13 26,574 3,995

Fixed deposits 14 2,812,180 2,306,660
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Less :
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Advance receipts, deposit received 

and accruals 15 555,239 586,137
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NET CURRENT ASSETS 3,793,975      3,252,019      
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

37

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2018



STATEMENT    OF   FINANCIAL   POSITION   AS   AT   31   
MARCH   2017

COUNSELLING AND CARE CENTRE
(REGISTERED UNDER THE SOCIETIES ACT, CAP. 311)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Note 2018 2017

Anthony Yeo

Consultancy Staff 

and Gratuity Fair Value Development 

Training Fund Reserve Counselling Fund Total Total

SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD

Voluntary Income

NCSS Funding - Comm Chest -                 -                 -                 1,042,719      -                 1,042,719      1,070,958      

NCSS Funding - Care & Share 2,632             -                 -                 6,143             -                 8,775             53,077           

NCSS Funding - VCF IPG 12,968           30,260           43,228           -                 

NCSS Funding - Others 4,400             -                 -                 10,266           -                 14,666           -                 

Goverment subsidy 7,810             -                 -                 18,222           -                 26,032           54,294           

Singapore Telecom subsidy -                 -                 -                 660                -                 660                660                

Tax exempt donation -                 -                 -                 23,945           -                 23,945           10,273           

Non-Tax Exempt Donations -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 488                

Sales of books -                 -                 -                 -                 4,106             4,106             6,949             

27,810           -                 -                 1,132,215      4,106             1,164,131      1,196,699      

Revenue from generating funds -                 

Consultancy fees 233,501 -                 -                 -                 -                 233,501 242,100

Training fees 794,296 -                 -                 -                 -                 794,296 766,270

1,027,797 -                 -                 -                 -                 1,027,797 1,008,370

Revenue from charitable activities 

Counselling fees -                 -                 -                 283,113 -                 283,113 279,031

Membership fees -                 -                 -                 600                -                 600 690                

-                 -                 -                 283,713         -                 283,713         279,721         

Investment income

Interest and dividend 21,139 -                 -                 21,139 -                 42,278 14,493

21,139           -                 -                 21,139           -                 42,278           14,493           

Other incoming resources

Miscellaneous income 47                  -                 -                 360 10                  417 397

47                  -                 -                 360                10                  417                397                

TOTAL REVENUE 1,076,793      -                 -                 1,437,427      4,116             2,518,336      2,499,680      

EXPENDITURE

LESS: COSTS OF GENERATING FUNDS

Staff salary 19 293,277 -                 -                 -                 -                 293,277         288,255

Staff bonus 19 124,064 -                 -                 -                 -                 124,064         51,689

Employer’s  CPF and other contributions 19 62,174 1,112             -                 -                 -                 63,286           50,369

Provision for employee’s unutilised annual leave 19 521                -                 -                 -                 -                 521                (1,178)            

Staff benefits 19 2,658 -                 -                 -                 -                 2,658             3,760

Staff training 19 7,896 -                 -                 -                 -                 7,896             4,303

Communication 2,050             -                 -                 -                 -                 2,050             2,219

Gratuity -                 7,773             -                 -                 -                 7,773             -                 

Publicity 651                -                 -                 -                 -                 651                987

Rental of centre 4,676             -                 -                 -                 -                 4,676             5,004

Rental of equipment under operating lease -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 146

Sabbatical expenses -                 -                 -                 -                 2,056 2,056             2,109

Utilities 2,305             -                 -                 -                 -                 2,305             2,275

Training expenses 66,715           -                 -                 -                 -                 66,715           30,081

Transport 10,091           -                 -                 -                 -                 10,091           9,965

Withholding tax -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 153                

Conference expenses -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 139,965         

Open house expenses -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 1,701             

GST expenses -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 32,912           

577,078         8,885             -                 -                 2,056             588,019         624,715         

Unrestricted Funds Restricted Funds
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SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD

Voluntary Income

NCSS Funding - Comm Chest -                 -                 -                 1,042,719      -                 1,042,719      1,070,958      
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Note 2018 2017
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Training Fund Reserve Counselling Fund Total Total
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Conference expenses -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 139,965         
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Note 2018 2017

Anthony Yeo
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and Gratuity Fair Value Development 

Training Fund Reserve Counselling Fund Total Total

SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD

Voluntary Income

NCSS Funding - Comm Chest -                 -                 -                 1,042,719      -                 1,042,719      1,070,958      
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

COUNSELLING AND CARE CENTRE
(REGISTERED UNDER THE SOCIETIES ACT, CAP. 311)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 (CONTINUED) 

Note 2018 2017

Anthony Yeo

Consultancy Staff 

and Gratuity Fair Value Development

Training Fund Reserve Counselling Fund Total Total

SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD

LESS: CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES EXPENSES

Staff salary 19 -                 -                 -                 633,320 -                 633,320 571,926

Staff bonus 19 -                 -                 -                 269,043 -                 269,043         287,872

Employer’s  CPF and other contributions 19 -                 1,009             -                 137,886 -                 138,895         134,503

Provision for employee’s unutilised annual leave 19 -                 -                 -                 1,913 -                 1,913             1,138             

Staff benefits 19 -                 -                 -                 5,279 -                 5,279             5,340

Staff training 19 -                 -                 -                 18,770 -                 18,770           10,040

Communication -                 -                 -                 4,267             -                 4,267             4,606             

Gratuity -                 5,934             -                 -                 -                 5,934             -                 

Publicity -                 -                 -                 1,519             -                 1,519             1,719             

Public Education -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 4,230             

Rental of centre -                 -                 -                 7,652             -                 7,652             8,121             

Rental of equipment under operating lease -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 341                

Sabbatical expenses -                 -                 -                 -                 4,797             4,797             7,885             

Transport -                 -                 -                 12,693           -                 12,693           12,328           

Utilities -                 -                 -                 5,172             -                 5,172             5,390             

GST expenses -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 8,132             

-                 6,943             -                 1,097,514      4,797             1,109,254      1,063,571      

LESS: GOVERNANCE COSTS

Staff salary 19 27,037           -                 -                 63,086           -                 90,123 83,726

Staff bonus 19 12,754           -                 -                 29,759           -                 42,513 37,357           

Employer’s  CPF and other contributions 19 4,760             -                 11,109           -                 15,869 16,114           

Provision for employee’s unutilised annual leave 19 326                -                 -                 769                -                 1,095 (120)               

Staff benefits 19 2,547             -                 -                 5,947             -                 8,494 11,202           

Staff training 19 1,208             -                 -                 511                1,719 -                 

Depreciation of plant and equipment 52,111           -                 -                 100,549         -                 152,660 150,590         

Affiliation fees 1,944             -                 -                 4,536             -                 6,480 9,649             

Bank charges 10                  -                 -                 91                  -                 101 251                

Communication 88                  -                 -                 206                -                 294 -                 

Cost of books -                 -                 -                 -                 2,427 2,427 4,826             

Gratuity -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 11,837           

Insurance 1,811             -                 -                 4,225             -                 6,036 6,433             

Maintenance of center 4,375             -                 -                 8,025             -                 12,400 9,928             

Maintenance of equipment 2,683             -                 -                 4,265             -                 6,948 3,395             

Plant and equipment written off 3                    -                 -                 11                  -                 14 672                

Professional fee 3,230             -                 -                 7,536             -                 10,766 8,157             

Supplies and materials 4,951             -                 -                 8,919             -                 13,870 13,829           

Transport 179                -                 -                 467                -                 646 973                

120,017         -                 -                 250,011         2,427             372,455         368,819         

LESS: OTHER RESOURCES EXPENDED

Miscellaneous expenses -                 -                 -                 -                 618                618 786

-                 -                 -                 -                 618                618                786                

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 697,095         15,828           -                 1,347,525      9,898             2,070,346      2,057,891      
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(REGISTERED UNDER THE SOCIETIES ACT, CAP. 311)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 (CONTINUED) 

Note20182017

Anthony Yeo

ConsultancyStaff 

andGratuity Fair Value Development

Training FundReserveCounselling FundTotalTotal

SGDSGDSGDSGDSGDSGDSGD

LESS: CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES EXPENSES
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Provision for employee’s unutilised annual leave19-                  -                  -                  1,913-                  1,913              1,138              

Staff benefits19-                  -                  -                  5,279-                  5,279              5,340

Staff training19-                  -                  -                  18,770-                  18,770            10,040

Communication-                  -                  -                  4,267              -                  4,267              4,606              

Gratuity-                  5,934              -                  -                  -                  5,934              -                  

Publicity-                  -                  -                  1,519              -                  1,519              1,719              

Public Education-                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  4,230              

Rental of centre-                  -                  -                  7,652              -                  7,652              8,121              

Rental of equipment under operating lease-                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  341                 

Sabbatical expenses-                  -                  -                  -                  4,797              4,797              7,885              

Transport-                  -                  -                  12,693            -                  12,693            12,328            

Utilities-                  -                  -                  5,172              -                  5,172              5,390              

GST expenses-                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  8,132              

-                  6,943              -                  1,097,514       4,797              1,109,254       1,063,571       

LESS: GOVERNANCE COSTS

Staff salary1927,037            -                  -                  63,086            -                  90,12383,726

Staff bonus1912,754            -                  -                  29,759            -                  42,51337,357            

Employer’s  CPF and other contributions194,760              -                  11,109            -                  15,86916,114            

Provision for employee’s unutilised annual leave19326                 -                  -                  769                 -                  1,095(120)                

Staff benefits192,547              -                  -                  5,947              -                  8,49411,202            

Staff training191,208              -                  -                  511                 1,719-                  

Depreciation of plant and equipment52,111            -                  -                  100,549          -                  152,660150,590          

Affiliation fees1,944              -                  -                  4,536              -                  6,4809,649              

Bank charges10                   -                  -                  91                   -                  101251                 

Communication88                   -                  -                  206                 -                  294-                  

Cost of books-                  -                  -                  -                  2,4272,4274,826              

Gratuity-                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  11,837            

Insurance1,811              -                  -                  4,225              -                  6,0366,433              

Maintenance of center4,375              -                  -                  8,025              -                  12,4009,928              

Maintenance of equipment2,683              -                  -                  4,265              -                  6,9483,395              

Plant and equipment written off 3                     -                  -                  11                   -                  14672                 

Professional fee3,230              -                  -                  7,536              -                  10,7668,157              

Supplies and materials4,951              -                  -                  8,919              -                  13,87013,829            

Transport179                 -                  -                  467                 -                  646973                 

120,017          -                  -                  250,011          2,427              372,455          368,819          

LESS: OTHER RESOURCES EXPENDED

Miscellaneous expenses-                  -                  -                  -                  618                 618786

-                  -                  -                  -                  618                 618                 786                 
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and Gratuity Fair Value Development
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SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD
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Utilities -                 -                 -                 5,172             -                 5,172             5,390             

GST expenses -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 8,132             

-                 6,943             -                 1,097,514      4,797             1,109,254      1,063,571      

LESS: GOVERNANCE COSTS

Staff salary 19 27,037           -                 -                 63,086           -                 90,123 83,726

Staff bonus 19 12,754           -                 -                 29,759           -                 42,513 37,357           

Employer’s  CPF and other contributions 19 4,760             -                 11,109           -                 15,869 16,114           
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Gratuity -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 11,837           

Insurance 1,811             -                 -                 4,225             -                 6,036 6,433             

Maintenance of center 4,375             -                 -                 8,025             -                 12,400 9,928             

Maintenance of equipment 2,683             -                 -                 4,265             -                 6,948 3,395             

Plant and equipment written off 3                    -                 -                 11                  -                 14 672                

Professional fee 3,230             -                 -                 7,536             -                 10,766 8,157             

Supplies and materials 4,951             -                 -                 8,919             -                 13,870 13,829           

Transport 179                -                 -                 467                -                 646 973                

120,017         -                 -                 250,011         2,427             372,455         368,819         

LESS: OTHER RESOURCES EXPENDED

Miscellaneous expenses -                 -                 -                 -                 618                618 786

-                 -                 -                 -                 618                618                786                

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 697,095         15,828           -                 1,347,525      9,898             2,070,346      2,057,891      
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Supplies and materials 4,951             -                 -                 8,919             -                 13,870 13,829           
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120,017         -                 -                 250,011         2,427             372,455         368,819         
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Staff bonus 19 -                 -                 -                 269,043 -                 269,043         287,872
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Utilities -                 -                 -                 5,172             -                 5,172             5,390             

GST expenses -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 8,132             

-                 6,943             -                 1,097,514      4,797             1,109,254      1,063,571      

LESS: GOVERNANCE COSTS

Staff salary 19 27,037           -                 -                 63,086           -                 90,123 83,726

Staff bonus 19 12,754           -                 -                 29,759           -                 42,513 37,357           

Employer’s  CPF and other contributions 19 4,760             -                 11,109           -                 15,869 16,114           

Provision for employee’s unutilised annual leave 19 326                -                 -                 769                -                 1,095 (120)               

Staff benefits 19 2,547             -                 -                 5,947             -                 8,494 11,202           

Staff training 19 1,208             -                 -                 511                1,719 -                 
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Professional fee 3,230             -                 -                 7,536             -                 10,766 8,157             
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Transport 179                -                 -                 467                -                 646 973                

120,017         -                 -                 250,011         2,427             372,455         368,819         

LESS: OTHER RESOURCES EXPENDED
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-                 -                 -                 -                 618                618                786                
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Gratuity -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 11,837           

Insurance 1,811             -                 -                 4,225             -                 6,036 6,433             

Maintenance of center 4,375             -                 -                 8,025             -                 12,400 9,928             

Maintenance of equipment 2,683             -                 -                 4,265             -                 6,948 3,395             

Plant and equipment written off 3                    -                 -                 11                  -                 14 672                

Professional fee 3,230             -                 -                 7,536             -                 10,766 8,157             

Supplies and materials 4,951             -                 -                 8,919             -                 13,870 13,829           

Transport 179                -                 -                 467                -                 646 973                

120,017         -                 -                 250,011         2,427             372,455         368,819         

LESS: OTHER RESOURCES EXPENDED
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-                  -                  -                  -                  618                 618                 786                 

TOTAL EXPENDITURE697,095          15,828            -                  1,347,525       9,898              2,070,346       2,057,891       

Unrestricted FundsRestricted Funds

8

COUNSELLING AND CARE CENTRE
(REGISTERED UNDER THE SOCIETIES ACT, CAP. 311)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 (CONTINUED) 
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Training FundReserveCounselling FundTotalTotal

SGDSGDSGDSGDSGDSGDSGD
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COUNSELLING AND CARE CENTRE
(REGISTERED UNDER THE SOCIETIES ACT, CAP. 311)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 (CONTINUED) 

Note 2018 2017

Anthony Yeo

Consultancy Staff

and Gratuity Fair Value Development

Training Fund Reserve Counselling Fund Total Total

SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD

NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR 379,698         (15,828)          -                 89,902           (5,782)            447,990         441,789         

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Fair value adjustments during the year -                 -                 (9,366)            -                 -                 (9,366)            (164)               

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax -                 -                 (9,366)            -                 -                 (9,366)            (164)               

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 379,698         (15,828)          (9,366)            89,902           (5,782)            438,624         441,625         

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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COUNSELLING AND CARE CENTRE

(REGISTERED UNDER THE SOCIETIES ACT, CAP. 311)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ACCUMULATED FUND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Anthony Yeo

Consultancy Anthony Yeo Fair value Staff Staff

and Gratuity Education Adjustment Development Development

Training Fund Fund Reserve Counselling Fund Fund Total

SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD

BALANCE AS AT 1 APRIL 2016 1,199,209  298,570     95,241       (1,812)        1,730,323  48,134       -             3,369,665  

Total comprehensive income 

for the year 353,056     (13,241)      -             (164)           110,777     (8,803)        -             441,625     

Transfer between funds (36,323)      91,631       (95,241)      -             (55,308)      (39,331)      134,572     -             

BALANCE AS AT 31 MARCH 2017 1,515,942  376,960     -             (1,976)        1,785,792  -             134,572     3,811,290  

Total comprehensive income 

for the year 379,698     (15,828)      -             (9,366)        89,902       -             (5,782)        438,624     

Transfer between funds (46,518)      46,518       -             -             -             -             -             -             

BALANCE AS AT 31 MARCH 2018 1,849,122  407,650     -             (11,342)      1,875,694  -             128,790     4,249,914  
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

COUNSELLING AND CARE CENTRE

(REGISTERED UNDER THE SOCIETIES ACT, CAP. 311)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Note 2018 2017

SGD SGD

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net surplus for the year 447,990         441,789         

Adjustments for non-cash items:

Depreciation of plant and equipment 152,660         150,590         

Plant and equipment written off 14                  672                

Interest and dividend income (42,278)          (14,493)          

Operating cash flows before working capital changes 558,386         578,558         

Working capital changes

Inventories 770                4,328             

Fees receivables 31,891           (44,351)          

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments (5,093)            36,130           

Advance receipts, deposit received and accruals (30,898)          40,397           

(3,330)            36,504           

NET CASH EFFECT OF OPERATING ACTIVITIES 555,056         615,062         

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of intangible asset (34,400)          -                 

Purchase of plant and equipment (18,031)          (31,699)          

Placement of fixed deposit (1,500,000)     (2,000,000)     

Uplift of fixed deposit 1,000,000      413,212         

Interest and dividend income received 12,995           1,658             

NET CASH EFFECT OF INVESTING ACTIVITIES (539,436)        (1,616,829)     

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 15,620           (1,001,767)     

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT 1 APRIL 16 1,258,087      2,259,854      

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT 31 MARCH 16 1,273,707      1,258,087      

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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COUNSELLING AND CARE CENTRE 
(REGISTERED UNDER THE SOCIETIES ACT, CAP. 311) 
 
 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2018 
 
These notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 
 
 
1. GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
 Counselling and Care Centre is registered with Registry of Societies on 4 July 1975 and a 

registered charity under the Charities Act since 30 November 1983. The Centre is an Institute of 
Public Character from 1 December 2014 to 31 August 2020.  

 
 The principal activities of the Centre are to provide counselling services to the public and to 

provide education in counselling. 
 

The Centre’s registered office is at Block 536 Upper Cross Street, # 05-241, Hong Lim Complex 
Singapore 050536. 

 
 
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

2.1 Basis of accounting 
 

The financial statements are prepared in compliance with Singapore Financial Reporting 
Standards issued by Accounting Standards Council. 

 
  The financial statements are presented in Singapore dollars. 
 

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention 
except as disclosed in the accounting policies below. 

 
The financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2018 are authorised to be 
issued on the date of the Statement by Management Committee. 

 
 

2.2 Adoption of new and revised Financial Reporting Standards 
 

The accounting policies adopted in the financial year are consistent with those used in 
the previous financial year except for the adoption of certain new and revised Financial 
Reporting Standards effective for the financial year beginning 1 April 2017. These new 
and revised Financial Reporting Standards have no significant effects on the Centre’s 
accounting policies used except for:- 

 
Amendments to FRS 7 Statement of Cash Flows 
 
The amendments require that an entity shall provide disclosures that enable users of 
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, 
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.  
 
An entity shall disclose changes in liabilities arising from financing activities such as 
changes from financing cash flows; changes arising from obtaining or losing control of 
subsidiaries or other businesses; the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates; 
changes in fair values; and other changes.   
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2.       SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Financial Reporting Standards  
 

As at the date of this report, the Centre has not applied any new or revised Financial 
Reporting Standards that have been issued but not yet come into effect. These new and 
revised standards upon adoption will not have a significant impact on the financial 
statements except for:- 
 
FRS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

 
FRS 115 establishes a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for 
revenue arising from contracts with customers. It will supersede FRS 18, FRS 11 and 
related interpretations. 

 
The new standard replaces the current "risk and rewards" revenue recognition model to "a 
promise for transfer of control" model. In addition, the “promise of transfer” requires to be 
separately identifiable (ie distinguishable as a separate promise within the context of the 
contract).  
 
Revenue is recognised as control is passed, either over time or at a point in time. FRS 115 
also introduces a principle based five-step approach to revenue recognition and 
measurement. Extensive disclosures will be needed to meet the requirements of the 
standard.  

 
In addition, FRS 115 also provides some clarification the determination of the classification 
and rights of an entity. These principles revolve around the assessment of control to the 
good or service promised. 
 
FRS 116 Leases 
 
Financial Reporting Standard 116 Leases (FRS 116) sets out the principles for the 
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. The objective is to 
ensure that lessees and lessors provide relevant information in a manner that faithfully 
represents those transactions. This information gives a basis for users of financial 
statements to assess the effect that leases have on the financial position, financial 
performance and cash flows of the entity. 
 
The new approach to lease accounting under FRS 116 requires a lessee to recognise 
assets and liabilities for the rights and obligations created by leases (with limited 
exceptions). This approach will result in a more faithful representation of a lessee’s assets 
and liabilities and, together with enhanced disclosures, will provide greater transparency 
of a lessee’s financial leverage and capital employed. 
 
FRS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in FRS 17. 
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance 
leases, and to account for those two types of leases differently. 
 
FRS 116 also requires enhanced disclosures to be provided by lessors that will improve 
information disclosed about a lessor’s risk exposure, particularly to residual value risk. 
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Financial Reporting Standards (continued) 
 

FRS 109 Financial Instruments 
 

FRS 109 was introduced to replace FRS 39 in the following three phases: 
 
(i) Recognition, classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities 

 
   FRS 109 consists only two broad measurement and classification categories for financial 

assets i.e. fair value or amortised cost eliminating the existing four categories. Financial 
assets shall only measured at amortised cost if:- 

 
(a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial   
      assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and 

 
(b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows  

that are  solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount   
outstanding.  

         
On the other hand, the main changes in FRS 109 for financial liabilities relates to the 
presentation of changes in the fair value. The changes is recognised directly in other 
comprehensive income and no reclassification to profit or loss unless it would creates or 
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. 

 
(ii)  Impairment methodology 

 
   FRS 109 requires entity to recognise loss allowance (impairment) for expected credit 

losses, as opposed to incurred credit losses under FRS 39. The amount of expected 
credit losses should be reviewed and updated at each reporting date to reflect the 
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. 

 
(iii)  Hedge accounting 

 
  FRS 109 introduced a general hedge accounting model that aligns more closely with 

companies' risk management strategies. The effectiveness test has been replaced with 
the principle of an "economic relationship" and that retrospective assessment is no 
longer required. There is also additional disclosure requirement introduced. 

 
 

2.4 Key sources of estimation uncertainty 
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Singapore Financial Reporting 
Standards requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as at 
the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of income and expenses 
during the financial year. Although these estimates are based on the management 
committee’s best knowledge of current event and actions, actual results may differ from 
those estimates. 

 
There are no significant key assumptions concerning the future, nor other key sources of 
estimation uncertainty at the year end that would have significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year 
except for:- 
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2.       SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
 2.4  Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) 
 

(i) Depreciation of plant and equipment 
 

The estimates for the residual values, useful lives and related depreciation charges 
for the plant and equipment are based on commercial and production factors which 
could change significantly as a result of technical innovations and competitors’ 
actions in response to the market conditions. 
 
The Centre anticipates that the residual values of its plant and equipment will be 
insignificant.  As a result, residual values are not being taken into consideration for 
the computation of the depreciable amount.  
 
Changes in the expected level of usage and technological development could impact 
the economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets, therefore future 
depreciation charges could be revised. 
 

(ii) Impairment of assets 
 

When the recoverable amount of an asset is determined based on the estimate of the 
value-in-use of the cash-generating unit to which the asset is allocated, the 
management is required to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from 
the cash-generating unit and also to apply a suitable discount rate in order to determine 
the present value of those cash flows.  

 
 

2.5 Plant and equipment and depreciation 
 

Plant and equipment are initially stated at cost.  Subsequent to initial recognition, plant and 
equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses.  

 
Depreciation of an asset commences when the asset is available for use.  Depreciation is 
provided on gross carrying amounts less residual value in equal annual installments over 
the estimated lives of the assets.  The annual rates of depreciation are as follows: 

 
 % per annum 
Office equipment and furnitures 20% 
Renovation 20% 

 
The residual value and the useful life of an asset are reviewed at each year end, and if 
expectations are different from previous estimate, changes are made to the depreciation 
charge for the remaining undepreciated amount.  

 
Fully depreciated assets are retained in the financial statements until they are no longer 
in use or disposed and no further charges for depreciation is made in respect of these 
assets. Any gain or loss arising from the derecognition of the asset is recognised in the 
statement of comprehensive income.  

 
When events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset is 
not recoverable, impairment loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.  

 
 

2.6 Intangible asset 
 

Acquired computer software licences are initially capitalised at cost which includes the 
purchase price (net of any discounts and rebates) and other directly attributes costs of 
preparing the software for its intended use. Direct expenditure which enhances or 
extends the performance of computer software beyond its specifications and which can 
be reliably measured is added to the original cost of the software. Costs associated with 
maintaining computer software are recognised as an expense as incurred. 
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2.       SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
 2.4  Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) 
 

(i) Depreciation of plant and equipment 
 

The estimates for the residual values, useful lives and related depreciation charges 
for the plant and equipment are based on commercial and production factors which 
could change significantly as a result of technical innovations and competitors’ 
actions in response to the market conditions. 
 
The Centre anticipates that the residual values of its plant and equipment will be 
insignificant.  As a result, residual values are not being taken into consideration for 
the computation of the depreciable amount.  
 
Changes in the expected level of usage and technological development could impact 
the economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets, therefore future 
depreciation charges could be revised. 
 

(ii) Impairment of assets 
 

When the recoverable amount of an asset is determined based on the estimate of the 
value-in-use of the cash-generating unit to which the asset is allocated, the 
management is required to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from 
the cash-generating unit and also to apply a suitable discount rate in order to determine 
the present value of those cash flows.  

 
 

2.5 Plant and equipment and depreciation 
 

Plant and equipment are initially stated at cost.  Subsequent to initial recognition, plant and 
equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses.  

 
Depreciation of an asset commences when the asset is available for use.  Depreciation is 
provided on gross carrying amounts less residual value in equal annual installments over 
the estimated lives of the assets.  The annual rates of depreciation are as follows: 

 
 % per annum 
Office equipment and furnitures 20% 
Renovation 20% 

 
The residual value and the useful life of an asset are reviewed at each year end, and if 
expectations are different from previous estimate, changes are made to the depreciation 
charge for the remaining undepreciated amount.  

 
Fully depreciated assets are retained in the financial statements until they are no longer 
in use or disposed and no further charges for depreciation is made in respect of these 
assets. Any gain or loss arising from the derecognition of the asset is recognised in the 
statement of comprehensive income.  

 
When events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset is 
not recoverable, impairment loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.  

 
 

2.6 Intangible asset 
 

Acquired computer software licences are initially capitalised at cost which includes the 
purchase price (net of any discounts and rebates) and other directly attributes costs of 
preparing the software for its intended use. Direct expenditure which enhances or 
extends the performance of computer software beyond its specifications and which can 
be reliably measured is added to the original cost of the software. Costs associated with 
maintaining computer software are recognised as an expense as incurred. 
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2.       SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
 2.4  Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) 
 

(i) Depreciation of plant and equipment 
 

The estimates for the residual values, useful lives and related depreciation charges 
for the plant and equipment are based on commercial and production factors which 
could change significantly as a result of technical innovations and competitors’ 
actions in response to the market conditions. 
 
The Centre anticipates that the residual values of its plant and equipment will be 
insignificant.  As a result, residual values are not being taken into consideration for 
the computation of the depreciable amount.  
 
Changes in the expected level of usage and technological development could impact 
the economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets, therefore future 
depreciation charges could be revised. 
 

(ii) Impairment of assets 
 

When the recoverable amount of an asset is determined based on the estimate of the 
value-in-use of the cash-generating unit to which the asset is allocated, the 
management is required to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from 
the cash-generating unit and also to apply a suitable discount rate in order to determine 
the present value of those cash flows.  

 
 

2.5 Plant and equipment and depreciation 
 

Plant and equipment are initially stated at cost.  Subsequent to initial recognition, plant and 
equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses.  

 
Depreciation of an asset commences when the asset is available for use.  Depreciation is 
provided on gross carrying amounts less residual value in equal annual installments over 
the estimated lives of the assets.  The annual rates of depreciation are as follows: 

 
 % per annum 
Office equipment and furnitures 20% 
Renovation 20% 

 
The residual value and the useful life of an asset are reviewed at each year end, and if 
expectations are different from previous estimate, changes are made to the depreciation 
charge for the remaining undepreciated amount.  

 
Fully depreciated assets are retained in the financial statements until they are no longer 
in use or disposed and no further charges for depreciation is made in respect of these 
assets. Any gain or loss arising from the derecognition of the asset is recognised in the 
statement of comprehensive income.  

 
When events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset is 
not recoverable, impairment loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.  

 
 

2.6 Intangible asset 
 

Acquired computer software licences are initially capitalised at cost which includes the 
purchase price (net of any discounts and rebates) and other directly attributes costs of 
preparing the software for its intended use. Direct expenditure which enhances or 
extends the performance of computer software beyond its specifications and which can 
be reliably measured is added to the original cost of the software. Costs associated with 
maintaining computer software are recognised as an expense as incurred. 
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2.       SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
 2.4  Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) 
 

(i) Depreciation of plant and equipment 
 

The estimates for the residual values, useful lives and related depreciation charges 
for the plant and equipment are based on commercial and production factors which 
could change significantly as a result of technical innovations and competitors’ 
actions in response to the market conditions. 
 
The Centre anticipates that the residual values of its plant and equipment will be 
insignificant.  As a result, residual values are not being taken into consideration for 
the computation of the depreciable amount.  
 
Changes in the expected level of usage and technological development could impact 
the economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets, therefore future 
depreciation charges could be revised. 
 

(ii) Impairment of assets 
 

When the recoverable amount of an asset is determined based on the estimate of the 
value-in-use of the cash-generating unit to which the asset is allocated, the 
management is required to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from 
the cash-generating unit and also to apply a suitable discount rate in order to determine 
the present value of those cash flows.  

 
 

2.5 Plant and equipment and depreciation 
 

Plant and equipment are initially stated at cost.  Subsequent to initial recognition, plant and 
equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses.  

 
Depreciation of an asset commences when the asset is available for use.  Depreciation is 
provided on gross carrying amounts less residual value in equal annual installments over 
the estimated lives of the assets.  The annual rates of depreciation are as follows: 

 
 % per annum 
Office equipment and furnitures 20% 
Renovation 20% 

 
The residual value and the useful life of an asset are reviewed at each year end, and if 
expectations are different from previous estimate, changes are made to the depreciation 
charge for the remaining undepreciated amount.  

 
Fully depreciated assets are retained in the financial statements until they are no longer 
in use or disposed and no further charges for depreciation is made in respect of these 
assets. Any gain or loss arising from the derecognition of the asset is recognised in the 
statement of comprehensive income.  

 
When events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset is 
not recoverable, impairment loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.  

 
 

2.6 Intangible asset 
 

Acquired computer software licences are initially capitalised at cost which includes the 
purchase price (net of any discounts and rebates) and other directly attributes costs of 
preparing the software for its intended use. Direct expenditure which enhances or 
extends the performance of computer software beyond its specifications and which can 
be reliably measured is added to the original cost of the software. Costs associated with 
maintaining computer software are recognised as an expense as incurred. 
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

2.6 Intangible asset (continued) 
 
Computer software licences are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation 
and accumulated impairment losses. These costs are amortised to statement of 
comprehensive income using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of 6 
years. 

 
 

2.7 Investments  
 

These investments are non-derivatives financial assets that are designated as available-for-
sale financial assets.  After initial recognition, these investments are measured at their fair 
value prevailing at the year end.   

 
For quoted investments, fair value is determined with reference to the published price 
quotation in an active public securities market.  

 
The resultant gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value is recognised directly in 
equity in Fair Value Adjustment Reserve until these investments are disposed, at which 
time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity would be taken to the 
statement of comprehensive income for the period.   

 
For investments that have been impaired, the cumulative net loss that had been recognised 
directly in the Fair Value Adjustment Reserve would be reversed from the reserve and 
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.  The amount of loss that would be 
reversed from the Fair Value Adjustment Reserve and is recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income would be the difference between acquisition cost and current fair 
value, less any impairment loss of the same item previously recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income. 

 
 

2.8 Inventories 
 

Inventories consisting of books are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value, cost 
being determined using the weighted average method.  In arriving at net realisable value, 
due allowance is made for all obsolete, damaged and slow moving items. 

 
 

2.9 Financial assets 
 

Financial assets are classified as ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’, ‘loans 
and receivables’, ‘held-to-maturity investments’, or ‘available-for-sale’ financial assets.  
Financial assets are recognised in the statement of financial position when the Centre 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial assets. 

 
All financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable 
transactional costs, except for ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ which are 
measured at fair value only.  The classification of financial assets, after initial recognition, is 
re-evaluated and reclassified where allowed and appropriate. 

 
 

2.10 Fees receivable and other receivables 
 
Fees receivable and other receivables are classified and accounted for as ‘loans and 
receivable’ as they are non-derivatives financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in an active market.  These assets are carried at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method.  
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

2.6 Intangible asset (continued) 
 
Computer software licences are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation 
and accumulated impairment losses. These costs are amortised to statement of 
comprehensive income using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of 6 
years. 

 
 

2.7 Investments  
 

These investments are non-derivatives financial assets that are designated as available-for-
sale financial assets.  After initial recognition, these investments are measured at their fair 
value prevailing at the year end.   

 
For quoted investments, fair value is determined with reference to the published price 
quotation in an active public securities market.  

 
The resultant gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value is recognised directly in 
equity in Fair Value Adjustment Reserve until these investments are disposed, at which 
time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity would be taken to the 
statement of comprehensive income for the period.   

 
For investments that have been impaired, the cumulative net loss that had been recognised 
directly in the Fair Value Adjustment Reserve would be reversed from the reserve and 
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.  The amount of loss that would be 
reversed from the Fair Value Adjustment Reserve and is recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income would be the difference between acquisition cost and current fair 
value, less any impairment loss of the same item previously recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income. 

 
 

2.8 Inventories 
 

Inventories consisting of books are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value, cost 
being determined using the weighted average method.  In arriving at net realisable value, 
due allowance is made for all obsolete, damaged and slow moving items. 

 
 

2.9 Financial assets 
 

Financial assets are classified as ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’, ‘loans 
and receivables’, ‘held-to-maturity investments’, or ‘available-for-sale’ financial assets.  
Financial assets are recognised in the statement of financial position when the Centre 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial assets. 

 
All financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable 
transactional costs, except for ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ which are 
measured at fair value only.  The classification of financial assets, after initial recognition, is 
re-evaluated and reclassified where allowed and appropriate. 

 
 

2.10 Fees receivable and other receivables 
 
Fees receivable and other receivables are classified and accounted for as ‘loans and 
receivable’ as they are non-derivatives financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in an active market.  These assets are carried at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method.  
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

2.6 Intangible asset (continued) 
 
Computer software licences are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation 
and accumulated impairment losses. These costs are amortised to statement of 
comprehensive income using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of 6 
years. 

 
 

2.7 Investments  
 

These investments are non-derivatives financial assets that are designated as available-for-
sale financial assets.  After initial recognition, these investments are measured at their fair 
value prevailing at the year end.   

 
For quoted investments, fair value is determined with reference to the published price 
quotation in an active public securities market.  

 
The resultant gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value is recognised directly in 
equity in Fair Value Adjustment Reserve until these investments are disposed, at which 
time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity would be taken to the 
statement of comprehensive income for the period.   

 
For investments that have been impaired, the cumulative net loss that had been recognised 
directly in the Fair Value Adjustment Reserve would be reversed from the reserve and 
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.  The amount of loss that would be 
reversed from the Fair Value Adjustment Reserve and is recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income would be the difference between acquisition cost and current fair 
value, less any impairment loss of the same item previously recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income. 

 
 

2.8 Inventories 
 

Inventories consisting of books are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value, cost 
being determined using the weighted average method.  In arriving at net realisable value, 
due allowance is made for all obsolete, damaged and slow moving items. 

 
 

2.9 Financial assets 
 

Financial assets are classified as ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’, ‘loans 
and receivables’, ‘held-to-maturity investments’, or ‘available-for-sale’ financial assets.  
Financial assets are recognised in the statement of financial position when the Centre 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial assets. 

 
All financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable 
transactional costs, except for ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ which are 
measured at fair value only.  The classification of financial assets, after initial recognition, is 
re-evaluated and reclassified where allowed and appropriate. 

 
 

2.10 Fees receivable and other receivables 
 
Fees receivable and other receivables are classified and accounted for as ‘loans and 
receivable’ as they are non-derivatives financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in an active market.  These assets are carried at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method.  

 

16 
 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

2.6 Intangible asset (continued) 
 
Computer software licences are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation 
and accumulated impairment losses. These costs are amortised to statement of 
comprehensive income using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of 6 
years. 

 
 

2.7 Investments  
 

These investments are non-derivatives financial assets that are designated as available-for-
sale financial assets.  After initial recognition, these investments are measured at their fair 
value prevailing at the year end.   

 
For quoted investments, fair value is determined with reference to the published price 
quotation in an active public securities market.  

 
The resultant gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value is recognised directly in 
equity in Fair Value Adjustment Reserve until these investments are disposed, at which 
time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity would be taken to the 
statement of comprehensive income for the period.   

 
For investments that have been impaired, the cumulative net loss that had been recognised 
directly in the Fair Value Adjustment Reserve would be reversed from the reserve and 
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.  The amount of loss that would be 
reversed from the Fair Value Adjustment Reserve and is recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income would be the difference between acquisition cost and current fair 
value, less any impairment loss of the same item previously recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income. 

 
 

2.8 Inventories 
 

Inventories consisting of books are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value, cost 
being determined using the weighted average method.  In arriving at net realisable value, 
due allowance is made for all obsolete, damaged and slow moving items. 

 
 

2.9 Financial assets 
 

Financial assets are classified as ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’, ‘loans 
and receivables’, ‘held-to-maturity investments’, or ‘available-for-sale’ financial assets.  
Financial assets are recognised in the statement of financial position when the Centre 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial assets. 

 
All financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable 
transactional costs, except for ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ which are 
measured at fair value only.  The classification of financial assets, after initial recognition, is 
re-evaluated and reclassified where allowed and appropriate. 

 
 

2.10 Fees receivable and other receivables 
 
Fees receivable and other receivables are classified and accounted for as ‘loans and 
receivable’ as they are non-derivatives financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in an active market.  These assets are carried at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method.  
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

2.6 Intangible asset (continued) 
 
Computer software licences are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation 
and accumulated impairment losses. These costs are amortised to statement of 
comprehensive income using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of 6 
years. 

 
 

2.7 Investments  
 

These investments are non-derivatives financial assets that are designated as available-for-
sale financial assets.  After initial recognition, these investments are measured at their fair 
value prevailing at the year end.   

 
For quoted investments, fair value is determined with reference to the published price 
quotation in an active public securities market.  

 
The resultant gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value is recognised directly in 
equity in Fair Value Adjustment Reserve until these investments are disposed, at which 
time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity would be taken to the 
statement of comprehensive income for the period.   

 
For investments that have been impaired, the cumulative net loss that had been recognised 
directly in the Fair Value Adjustment Reserve would be reversed from the reserve and 
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.  The amount of loss that would be 
reversed from the Fair Value Adjustment Reserve and is recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income would be the difference between acquisition cost and current fair 
value, less any impairment loss of the same item previously recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income. 

 
 

2.8 Inventories 
 

Inventories consisting of books are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value, cost 
being determined using the weighted average method.  In arriving at net realisable value, 
due allowance is made for all obsolete, damaged and slow moving items. 

 
 

2.9 Financial assets 
 

Financial assets are classified as ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’, ‘loans 
and receivables’, ‘held-to-maturity investments’, or ‘available-for-sale’ financial assets.  
Financial assets are recognised in the statement of financial position when the Centre 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial assets. 

 
All financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable 
transactional costs, except for ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ which are 
measured at fair value only.  The classification of financial assets, after initial recognition, is 
re-evaluated and reclassified where allowed and appropriate. 

 
 

2.10 Fees receivable and other receivables 
 
Fees receivable and other receivables are classified and accounted for as ‘loans and 
receivable’ as they are non-derivatives financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in an active market.  These assets are carried at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method.  
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

2.10 Fees receivable and other receivables (continued) 
 
The carrying amount of receivable impaired due to non recovery is reduced by an 
allowance account unless on the date of which the impairment loss is recognised, the 
Centre ascertains the amount to be uncollectible whereby it would be reduced directly. In 
subsequent periods, when a receivable is ascertained to be uncollectible, it is written off 
against the allowance account. 
 
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the customer will enter 
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments are 
considered indicators that the receivable is impaired.  Individual receivable is written off 
when management deems the amount not to be collectible. 
 
Gains or losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when these 
loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation 
process. 

 
 

2.11 Cash at bank and on hand and fixed deposits 
 

Cash at bank, cash on hand and fixed deposits are classified and accounted for as ‘loans 
and receivable’ as they are non-derivatives financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in an active market.  These assets are carried at amortised 
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2.   SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

2.14 Advance receipts and deposits received  
 

These liabilities are financial liabilities.  Financial liabilities are recognised on the 
statement of financial position when, and only when, the entity becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the financial instrument.  Financial liabilities are initially 
recognised at fair value of consideration received less directly attributable transaction 
costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

 
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when the 
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation process.  The liabilities are 
derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. 

 
 

2.15 Provision 
 

Provisions are recognised when the Centre has a present obligation as a result of a past 
event which is probable and will result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be 
reliably estimated. 

 
 

2.16 Revenue 
 

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale 
of goods and services, net of goods and services tax, rebates and discounts. 

 
Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is 
probable that future economic benefits will flow in and specific criteria have been met for 
each of the activities as described below.  The amount of revenue is not considered to be 
reliably measured until all contingencies relating to the transaction have been resolved.  
In recognising revenue, estimates based on historical results, taking into consideration 
the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement are 
considered. 

 
(i) Consultancy/training/counselling 

 
Consultancy/training/counselling fees are recognised over the duration of the 
services rendered. 

 
(ii) Membership fee 

 
Membership fee is recognised in the year the membership is subscribed.    

 
(iii) Interest and dividend income 

 
Interest income is recognised on a time apportioned basis using the effective 
interest method and dividend income is recognised when the right to receive 
payment is establish.   

 
(iv) Donations 

 
Donations and income from fund raising projects are recognised as and when the 
Society’s entitlement to such income is established with certainty and the amount 
can be measured with sufficient reliability. 

 
 

2.17 NCSS Funding - operational 
 

National Council of Social Service (NCSS) grant is recognised as income in the same year 
of which the grant is received to meet the operating expenses. 
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2.       SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

2.18 Employee benefits 
 

Employee benefits, which include base pay, cash bonuses, contribution to defined 
contribution plans such as the Central Provident Fund and other staff-related allowances, 
are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when incurred.  For defined 
contribution plans, contributions are made to publicly or privately administered funds on a 
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.  Once the contributions have been paid, there 
will be no further payment obligations. 

 
Employee entitlement to annual and other leave is recognised when they accrue to 
employees.  A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of 
services rendered by employees up to the year end. 

 
 

2.19 Operating lease 
 

Leases rental under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are 
charged to the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the period 
of the lease. 

 
 

2.20 Expenditure 
 

All expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis and has been classified under 
heading that aggregate all cost related to that activity. Cost comprises employee benefits 
expense attributable to the activity. Where cost cannot be wholly attribute to an activity 
they have been apportioned on a basis consistent with the use of resources. See note 17.  
These included rental of equipment, utilities, and support cost.  

 
(i) Allocation of support costs 

 
Support costs are employee benefits expense relating to general management, 
human resource and administration, budgeting, accounting and finance functions 
and have been allocated to charitable activities, governance and corporate 
communications based on the estimated usage on each activity.  

 
(ii) Costs of generating funds  

 
 The costs of generating funds are those costs attributable to generating income for 

charity, other than those costs incurred in undertaking charitable activities or the 
costs incurred in undertaking training and consultancy activities in furtherance of 
the charity’s objects.  

 
(iii) Charitable activities  

 
Cost of charitable activities comprises all cost incurred in the pursuit of the 
charitable objects of the charity. Those costs, which are not wholly attributable, are 
apportioned between the categories of charitable expenditure. The total costs of 
each category of charitable expenditure therefore include an apportionment of 
support cost.  

 
(iv) Governance costs  

 
Governance costs comprise all costs attributable to the general running of the 
Centre, in providing the governance infrastructure and in ensuring public 
accountability. These costs include costs related to constitutional and statutory 
requirements, and include an apportionment of overhead and support costs.  
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

2.20 Expenditure (continued) 
 

(v) Corporate communications costs 
 

Corporate communications costs comprise costs incurred in informing the Centre’s 
supporters and general public, as well as volunteers about its activities.  

 
 

2.21 Functional currency 
 

Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the 
Centre operates. The financial statements are prepared using Singapore dollar as the 
functional currency.  

 
 

2.22 Foreign currency transactions 
 

Foreign currency transactions are recorded, on initial recognition in the functional currency, 
by applying to the foreign currency amount to the spot exchange rate between the 
functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.  All transactions 
in currencies other than the functional currency are treated as transactions in foreign 
currencies.   
At each year end, foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are converted into the 
functional currency at the spot rate on the year end.  Exchange differences are taken to 
the statement of comprehensive income. 

 
2.23 Offsetting financial instruments 

 
Certain financial assets and financial liabilities offset each other and the net amount is 
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to set 
off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle them on a net basis, or realise 
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

 
 
3. CONSULTANCY AND TRAINING  
 

This is an unrestricted designated fund to meet the expenditure in accordance with the general 
objectives of the Centre. 

 
 
4. GRATUITY FUND 
 
 This is an unrestricted designated fund to award staff for their long service with the Centre. 
 
 
5. ANTHONY YEO EDUCATION FUND 
 
 This is an unrestricted designated fund to provide subsidies to financially constrained students 

who are taking the Centre’s programmes. The fund was transferred to Anthony Yeo Staff 
Development Fund in 2016 as the Master programme had ceased.  

 
 
6. COUNSELLING 
 

This is a restricted designated fund arises from subsidy received for the purpose of providing 
counselling service to public. 
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5. ANTHONY YEO EDUCATION FUND 
 
 This is an unrestricted designated fund to provide subsidies to financially constrained students 

who are taking the Centre’s programmes. The fund was transferred to Anthony Yeo Staff 
Development Fund in 2016 as the Master programme had ceased.  

 
 
6. COUNSELLING 
 

This is a restricted designated fund arises from subsidy received for the purpose of providing 
counselling service to public. 
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7. STAFF DEVELOPMENT FUND 
 ANTHONY YEO STAFF DEVELOPMENT FUND 
 

This is a restricted designated fund arises from donations received for the purpose of financing 
programmes for staff training and development. 

 
 
8. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

SGD SGD SGD

Cost

As at 1 April 2016 182,990       608,582       791,572       

Additions 31,699         -               31,699         

Written off (5,720)          -               (5,720)          

As at 31 March 2017 208,969       608,582       817,551       

Additions 18,031         -               18,031         

Written off (15,864)        -               (15,864)        

As at 31 March 2018 211,136       608,582       819,718       

Accumulated Depreciation

As at 1 April 2016 106,374       164,714       271,088       

Depreciation for the year 28,666         121,924       150,590       

Written off (5,048)          -               (5,048)          

As at 31 March 2017 129,992       286,638       416,630       

Depreciation for the year 30,736         121,924       152,660       

Written off (15,850)        -               (15,850)        

As at 31 March 2018 144,878       408,562       553,440       

Carrying amount

As at 31 March 2018 66,258         200,020       266,278       

As at 31 March 2017 78,977         321,944       400,921       

Renovation

Office 

equipment Total
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9. INTANGIBLE ASSET 
  

 Computer 

software 

Cost SGD

As at 1 April 2017 -                 

Additions 34,400           

As at 31 March 2018 34,400

Accumulated Depreciation

As at 1 April 2017 -                 

Amortisation for the year -                 

As at 31 March 2018 -                 

Carrying amount

As at 31 March 2018 34,400           

As at 31 March 2017 -                 

The computer software is under development as at 31 March 2018. 
 
 
10. INVESTMENT 

 

2018 2017

SGD SGD

Unit Trust

At cost           160,326           154,151 

Additions 6,277                           6,175 

Fair value adjustment (11,342)                      (1,976)
155,261         158,350

Movements in fair value adjustment of the unit trust are as follows: 
 

2018 2017

SGD SGD

Balance as at 1 April (1,976)                        (1,812)

Fair value adjustment (9,366)                           (164)

Balance as at 31 March (11,342)          (1,976)            

 
 
11. INVENTORIES 
 

2018  2017 

 SGD  SGD 

Books 8,593 9,363

 
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense amounted to SGD2,427 (2017: SGD4,826). 
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12. FEES RECEIVABLE AND ACCRUED REVENUE 
 

 

2018  2017 

 SGD  SGD 

Counselling fee receivable 2,371             11,352           

Consultancy/ training fee receivable 89,538           176,085         

Other fee receivable -                 398                

91,909           187,835         

Accrued revenue – training and counselling 136,251         72,216           

228,160         260,051

 
 
13. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 
 

 

2018  2017 

 SGD  SGD 

Advance to supplier 3,938             -                 

Deposits 2,400             2,271             

Accrued interest 17,486           -                 

Prepaid operating expenses 2,750             1,724             

26,574           3,995             

 
 
14. FIXED DEPOSITS 
 

Fixed deposits of SGD2,812,180 (2017: SGD2,306,660) have maturity period of not more than 18 
months with interest rates ranging from 1.28% to 1.42% (2017: 1.2% to 1.3%) per annum.  

 
 
15. ADVANCE RECEIPTS, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND ACCRUALS 
 

 

2018  2017 

 SGD  SGD 

Provision for reinstatement of centre 207,250         207,250         

Accrued employees’ bonus 275,422         268,083         

Deferred membership fee 480                120                

Deferred training fee 8,000             29,284           

Deposit received 150                150

GST payable 20,118           41,197           

Other accrued operating expenses 8,680             4,804             

Provision for unutilised leave 28,539           25,011           

Other payables 6,600             10,238

555,239         586,137         
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16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 

Cash and cash equivalents stated in the statement of cash flows comprised the followings: 
 

 

2018  2017 

 SGD  SGD 

Fixed deposits 2,812,180       2,306,660       

Cash at bank 1,273,246       1,257,524       

Cash on hand 461                 563                 

4,085,887       3,564,747       

Less: Fixed deposits with maturity period more than 3

         months (2,812,180)      (2,306,660)      

1,273,707       1,258,087       

 
17. TAXATION 
 

The Centre is a registered charity and no provision for income tax is required for the Centre. 
 
 
18. BASIS OF ALLOCATION OF EXPENSES 
 

The basis for apportioning the total operating costs to the generating fund, charitable activities and 
governance costs are as follows: 
 
   Governance costs  
 
 
Cost 

 
Charitable 
Activities 

 
Generating 

Funds 

 
 

Counselling  

 
Consultancy 
and Training  

 
Basis of 
apportionment 
 

Affiliation fees 
Insurance 
Maintenance of  

equipment 
Professional fee 
Supplies and 

material  
Depreciation of 

plant and 
equipment 

Bank charges 
Cost of books 

- - 70% 30% Based on funding 
policy or actual 
usage 
 

Employee 
benefits 
expense 
 
- Non-
administrative 
staff 
   
- Administrative 
staff  

 
 
 
 

70% 
 
 
 
- 

 
 
 
 

30% 
 
 
 
- 

 
 
 
 
- 
 
 
 

70% 

 
 
 
 
- 
 
 
 

30% 

Based on funding 
policy and actual 
usage for non-
administrative 
staff.   
Administrative staff 
costs are 
apportioned on a 
70%-30% basis 
which is based on 
management 
committees’ 
estimates. 
 

Rental of centre 
Utilities 
 

100% 100% - - Based on usage 
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18. BASIS OF ALLOCATION OF EXPENSES (CONTINUED) 
 

   Governance costs  
 
 
Cost 

 
Charitable 
Activities 

 
Generating 

Funds 

 
 

Counselling  

 
Consultancy 
and Training  

 
Basis of 
apportionment 
 

Publicity 
Communication 
 

70% 30% - - Based on usage 
 

Training 
expenses 
 

- 100% - - Based on usage 
 

Maintenance of 
centre 
 

- - 65% 35% Based on floor 
area.  
 

Transportation  
 
- Non-
administrative 
staff 
   
- Administrative 
staff 
 

 
 

100% 

 
 

100% 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

70% 

 
 
 
 
 
 

30% 

Based on usage 

Supplies and 
material 
 

- - 70% 30% Based on usage 
 

 
19. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 

 

2018 2017

SGD SGD

Staff salary and bonus 1,452,340       1,320,826       

Employer’s  CPF and other contributions 218,050          200,986          

Provision for employee’s unutilised annual leave 3,529              (160)                

Staff benefits 16,431            20,301            

Staff training 28,385            14,343            

1,718,735       1,556,296       

 
Included in the above is key management personnel compensation as follows: 

 

2018 2017

SGD SGD

Staff salary and bonus 305,037          380,796          

Employer’s CPF and other contributions 30,923            47,483            

335,960          428,279          

 
The annual remuneration band of the top 3 executives of the Centre is as follows:  

 
 2018  2017 

Less than SGD100,000 -  - 
SGD100,001 to SGD150,000 2  2 
Above SGD150,000 1  1 

 3  3 
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20. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 
 
 As at 31 March 2018, the center has outstanding capital commitment in relation to the purchase of 

computer software amounting to SGD51,600. 
 
 
21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTONS 
 

For the purpose of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Centre if 
the Centre has the ability, direct or indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant influence 
over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Centre and 
the party are subject to common significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or other 
entities.  

 
The Centre is governed by the Management Committee which is the final authority and is overall 
responsible for the policy making and determination of all activities. The members of the 
Management Committee are volunteers and receive no monetary remuneration for their 
contribution except for a member who received remuneration as an employee of the Centre within 
the range from SGD150,000 and above (2017: SGD150,000 and above). 

 
 
22. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

The Centre is exposed to the following risk through its normal operations. There are no changes on 
the Centre’s objectives, policies, or processes relating to the management of the Centre’s financial 
risk during the year. 

 
 a) Market risk 
 

i) Foreign exchange risk 
 

The Centre has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk as a substantial portion 
of its transactions is in Singapore dollar. 
 

ii) Interest rate risk 
 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instrument 
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.  

 
The Centre is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of rate changes on fixed 
deposits.   

 
Change in market interest rates by 1% (2017: 1%) on interest bearing financial assets 
as at the year end will have the effect on the financial statements as follows: 

 

 

2018 2017

SGD SGD

Net surplus for the year 28,122            23,067            

Accumulated fund -                  -                  

 
The above analysis assumes all other variables are held constant. 

 
iii)   Price risk 

 
The Centre is exposed to equity securities price risk from its quoted investments.  
These securities are mainly listed in Singapore.  Price risk arising from investments is 
managed by diversification of portfolio and regular monitoring of position held. 

 

61



27 
 

22. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 
 
 a) Market risk (continued) 
 

 iii)   Price risk (continued) 
 

Changes in price for equity securities as at the year end by 1% (2017: 1%) will have the 
effect on the financial statements as follows: 

 

2018 2017

SGD SGD

Net surplus for the year 1,553              1,584              

Accumulated fund -                  -                  

 
The above analysis assumes all other variables are held constant. 

 
 b) Credit risk 
 

The Centre is exposed to significant concentration of credit risk on its fixed deposits and 
cash at bank.  However, the Centre minimises the risk through placement of its cash and 
fixed deposits with few creditworthy financial institutions.  
 
The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of financial 
assets which are mainly fee and other receivables and bank balances. 
 
As at the year end, there is concentration of credit risk on trade receivables as follows:- 

 

2018 2017

SGD SGD

Top 1 customer 16,435 45,000

Top 2 customer 4,783 25,612

Top 3 customer 4,248 25,200

 
Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired  
 
Fee receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are substantially companies with 
good collection track record or that the recoverability is not in doubt.  Bank deposits, are 
mainly transacted with banks of high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating 
agencies.  
 
Financial assets that are past due and/or impaired  
 
There is no other class of financial assets that is past due and/or impaired except for fees 
receivable. 

 
  The age analysis of fees receivable past due is as follows:- 

 

2018 2017

SGD SGD

Past due within 3 months 87,967            178,015          

Past due 3 to 6 months 3,942              9,820              
91,909            187,835          

 
No impairment has been made on these amounts as the Centre is closely monitoring these 
receivables and is confident of their eventual recovery.  

 
  

62

28 
 

22. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 
 
 c) Liquidity risk 
 

The Centre manages its liquidity risk by monitoring and maintaining a level of cash and 
bank balances deemed adequate by the management to finance the Centre’s operations 
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.  

 
All the Centre’s financial liabilities are due within 1 year. 

 
 d) Fair value risk 
 

 The fair value of the Centre’s financial assets and financial liabilities reported in the 
statement of financial position approximates their carrying value.  

 
Fair value hierarchy 

 
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method.  
The different levels have been defined as follows: 

 
 d) Fair value risk (continued) 
 

• Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
• Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for 

the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices) 
• Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data 

(unobservable inputs). 
 
 

 
 

Level 1 
SGD 

 Level 2 
SGD 

 Level 3 
SGD 

 Total 
SGD 

As at 31 March 2018        
Available-for-sale 

financial assets 
 

155,261 
  

- 
  

- 
  

155,261 
        
As at 31 March 2017        
Available-for-sale 

financial assets 
 

158,350 
  

- 
  

- 
  

158,350 
 
 

e) Derivative instruments  
 

The Centre does not utilise any derivative instruments. 
 
 The responsibility for managing the above risks is vested in the management committee. 
 
 
23. RESERVE POLICY 
 

 
 

The Centre aims to maintain a reserve fund of at least 2 years of its projected operational 
expenses. The reserve will be use for the general expenses of the Centre, unless otherwise 
stated by the Management Committee. The Personnel and Finance Sub-committee, headed by 
the Chair, shall monitor the funds and report to the Management Committee by the end of the 
fiscal year. The reserve fund policy shall be subjected to review every 2 years.
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 

Classification of financial instruments 
 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured on an ongoing basis either at fair value or at 
amortised cost.  The significant accounting policies in Note 2 describe how the classes of financial 
instruments are measured, and how income and expenses, including fair value gains and losses, 
are recognised. The following table analyses the financial assets and financial liabilities in the 
statement of financial position by the class of financial instrument to which they are assigned, and 
therefore by the measurement basis: 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Loans and 
receivables 

SGD 

Available-
for-sale 
financial 
assets 
SGD 

Financial 
liabilities at 
amortised 

cost 
SGD 

 
 
 

Total 
SGD 

     
As at 31 March 2018     
     
Assets     
Investment - 155,261 - 155,261 
Fees receivable and accrued 

revenue 
 

91,909 
 

- 
 

- 
 

91,909 

Other receivables, deposits and 
prepayments 

 
2,400 

 
- 

 
- 

 
2,400 

Fixed deposits 2,812,180 - - 2,812,180 

Cash at bank and on hand 1,273,707 - - 1,273,707 

Total financial assets 4,180,196 155,261 - 4,335,457 

     
Total non-financial assets    469,696 
     

Total assets    4,805,153 

     
Liabilities     

Advance receipts, deposit 
received and accruals  

 
- 

 
- 

 
(6,750) 

 
(6,750) 

Total financial liabilities - - (6,750) (6,750) 

     

Total non-financial liabilities    (548,489) 

     

Total liabilities    (555,239) 

 
 
 
 

This section intentionally left blank 
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
 Classification of financial instruments (continued) 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Loans and 
receivables 

SGD 

Available-
for-sale 
financial 
assets 
SGD 

Financial 
liabilities at 
amortised 

cost 
SGD 

 
 
 

Total 
SGD 

     
     
As at 31 March 2017     
     
Assets     
Investment - 158,350 - 158,350 
Fees receivable and accrued 

revenue 
 

187,835 
 

- 
 

- 
 

187,835 

Other receivables, deposits and 
prepayments 

 
2,271 

 
- 

 
- 

 
2,271 

Fixed deposits 2,306,660 - - 2,306,660 

Cash at bank and on hand 1,258,087 - - 1,258,087 

Total financial assets 3,913,203 158,350 - 4,071,553 

     
Total non-financial assets    325,874 
     

Total assets    3,915,405 

     
Liabilities     

Advance receipts, deposit 
received and accruals  

 
- 

 
- 

 
(10,388) 

 
(10,388) 

Total financial liabilities - - (10,388) (10,388) 

     

Total non-financial liabilities    (575,749) 

     

Total liabilities    (586,137) 

 
 
25. TRANSFER OF FUNDS 
  
 From Consultancy and Training Fund 

 
During the year, the Committee Members approves the transfer to Gratuity Fund out of the 
surplus from Consultancy and Training Fund to build up the Gratuity Fund. 
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NotesCONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY

Counselling and Care Centre maintains documented procedures on an annual basis for Board 
members and staff to declare actual or potential conflicts of interest to the Board.
 
Board members do not vote or participate in decision-making on matters where they have a 
conflict of interest. In addition, no staff is involved in setting his or her own remuneration.
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